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ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED Ji MARCH 2019 

MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY v 

GENERAL SERVICE AIMS ANDOBJECTIVES 

WHO WE ARE AND WHAT WE DO 

Dunbartonshire and Argyll & Bute Valuation Joint Board is an independent local government body which was 
established byThe Valuation Joint Boards (Scotland) Order 1995. We professionally compile and maintain the 
Valuation Rolls, Council Tax Valuation Lists and Registers of Electors for the Argyll & Bute, East Dunbartonshire 
and West Dunbartonshire Council areas. · 

OURAIMS 

·Building on our established professionalism, we aim to provide high quality, transparent, effective and responsive 
services to all of our stakeholders. 

COMMITMENTS 

Within the constraints of the increasingly tight public finance regime, we are committed to: 

• Consulting 01ir stakeholders, and listening and responding to their views; 

• Valuing staff and pr9viding them with opportunities to develop and contribute; 

• Reacting innovatively to change; 

,, Encouraging innovation and recognising achievement within the organisation; 

• Treating all stakeholders, including staff, in a fair, consistent manner and in accordance with our Equalities 
requirements; 

o Striving for conti_nuous improvement in all aspects of service delivery; 

• Ensuring that we are accessible and accountable to stakeholders; 

o Pro-actively planning workloads and deploying resources efficiently; 

• Using language which is easy to unde·rstand;and 

. . 
• Working with our partners in the Scottish Assessors' Association (SAA) to ensure transparency and Scotland-

wide consistency of approach to service delivery. 
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DUNBARTONSHIREANDARGYLL & BUTE VALUATIONJOINT BOARD 
ANNUALACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3i MARCH 2019 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

This report comprises the Joint Board's Management Commentary and Annual Accounts in relation to the 2018/19 
financial year. · 

The main purpose ofthis Management Commentary is to infonn all users of the accounts and to help them assess ho·w 
the Joint Board perform their duty to promote the success of the Valuation Joint Board (VJB). This Management 
Commentary also summarises the functions and activities of the office of the Assessor and Eiectoral Registration 

·Officer (ERO) over the past year and provides information on the performance levels achieved in carrying orit the 
statutory duties of the organisation. 

The requirements governing the format and content of local authorities' annual accounts (under s I 06 of the Local 
Govem.ment (Scotland) Act 1973 joint boards and committees are classed as local authorities) are contained in The 
Code ofPractice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the "Code"). · 

2018/19 was another busy ~ear for the Assessor and ERO functions and the Board's employees. 

During the early part of the financial year the main focus of our Non-Domestic Rating efforts was the disposal of 
2017 Revaluation appeals, a process which was carried out in parallel with general maintenance of the Valuation Roll. 

Subsequent to the B'arclay Review of Non-domestic Rating (NOR), the Scottish Government carried out a public 
consultation, entitled "Barclay Implementation: A consultation on non-domestic rates reform," from 25th June to 17th 
September 2018, to seek views on,the specific details of how the legislation underpinning several of the Barclay 
Review recommendations will work in a number of areas. 

This culminated in the publication of the Non-Domestic Rates (Scotland) Bill in March 2019, the effects of which 
will be significant on the Assessor's service. ·More details on the Barclay Review and Non-Domestic Reform can be 
found at section 2;1. 

In relation to our Council Tax functions, the number of newdwellings added to the·Council Tax Lists was up on 
recent years and levels of proposals received were within the range expected on a year-on-year basis. 

The annual electoral register was published· on Ist December 2018 and a republication of the registers for West 
Dunbartonshire was effected at 1st February 2019 reflecting the Council's-completion of the statutory Review ofUK 
Parliamentary Polling Districts and Places. · 

There were no major or nati_onal elections during 2018/19 but registers were provided for Community Council and 
National Park elections. Towards the year-eri.d planning gqt under way for the European Parliamentary Elections held 
inMay_2019. · 

Various reforms of the electoral registration function were consulted on during the year with future changes expected 
te.aff.ect-theannua:l-electoral·eanvass;·the franchisefor&:ottish Parliamentary and Local Government elections 
(including voting rights for some prisoners) and bound!!fY reviews. · · 

'The Management Team continues to be the main forum for decision making within the organisation. It met regularly 
throughout 2018/19 to manage statutory functions and operations, and develop, implement and monitor policies and 
strategies. 

2.0 GENERAL PROGRESS IN RELATI01'l TOSTATUTORY FUNCTIONS 

2.1 NON-DOMESTIC RATING 

Aims 

• To carry out a general revaluation, currently every 5 years; 
~ To timeously compile and maintain the Valuation Roll. in accordance with the relevant legislation, to take aecount 

of new properties, properties which should no longer be entered in·the roll, properties which have been altered, 
changes to the parties shown in the Roll and other changes arising from statute or other decisions of the Courts; 
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DUNBARTONSHIREAND ARGYLL & BUTE VALUATION JOINT BOARD 
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

2.1 NON-DOMESTIC RA TING (Cont'd) 

. o. To issue Valuation Notices to the appropriate_parties shown in the Valuation Roll; 
o To consolidate or improve upon the time taken between the date on which ·amendments to the Valuation Roil are 

· effective and the date on which the Valuation Notice is issued; · 
o To publish the annual Valuation Roll, make it available to the rating authority, the Keeper of Records and other 

interested parties; and · 
• To deal with appeals by discussion with ratepayers or their agents, or by hearing of appeals before the appropriate 

valuation appeal bodies. · · 

20F Revaluatien 

The 2017 Revaluation came into effect on 1st April 2017 based on a valuation date of 1SI April 2015. Arising from 
that Revaluation 3,568 appeals were submitted against the values of3,460 subjec~. reflecting an appealed Rateable 
Value (RV) of £252,557,705. The statutory date for disposal of these appeals by Valuation Appeal Conunittees is 31st 

December 2020 and this is a priority for staff at this time. 

. . 

During the 2018/19 financial year 1,526 appeals were disposed of, with 367 (24.0%) resulting in a value adjustment 
and 1,159 (76.0%) being withdrawn or disposed of without any adjustment. In all, to date, 2,135 (59.8%) Revaluation 
appeals have been disposed of, with 540 (25.3%) resulting in an adjustment to the value and 1,595 (74.7%) resulting 
in no adjustment · · · 

Maintenance of the Valuation Roll 

Throughout the year, professional and technical staff have been invol~ed in the .routine updating· of the Valuation Roll 
to take account ofadditions, alterations and deletions. 1,048 amendments were made to the Valuation Roll during the 
year. The reduction in RV during the year arises primarily from appeal adjustments and a merger of mobile 
telecommunications network subjects. · 

Total No ofentries @ 1st Amil 2018 14,581 
Total Rateable Value·@ 1st Anril 2018 £372, 7 million 
Total Number of entries@ 31st March 2019 14,972 
Total Rateable. Value@ 31st March 2019 £368.7million 

The national Key Performance Indicator in relation to non-domestic valuation has been defined as the time taken from 
the date on which amendments to the Valuation Roll are effective to the date a Valuation Notice in respect of that 
change is issued. The following table sets out the targets and actual performance information for 2018/ l 9 compared 
with the actual figures for 2017 /18: 

Actual 2018/19 

' 
Actual Target Argyll & West East VJBArea 

Period. 2017/18 2018/19 Bute Dunbartonshire Dunbartonshire 

0-3 months 85% 85%. 88% 67% 85% 85% 
3-6 months 9% 9%. 8% 1.9% 11% 10%· 
>6months • 6% 6°% 4% 14% 4% · 5% 

Thus our target was achieved at 'less than 3 months' and marginill.ly surpassed at 'less then 6 months'. Our 
performance over the period since 2009/10 is shown and this illustrates th~t our perfonnance in 2018/19 was the best 
we have recorded since the start of the performance regime.· 
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DUNBARTONSHIREAND ARGYLL & BUTE VALUATION JOINT BOARD 
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

2.1 NON-DOMESTIC RA TING (Cont'd) 

DABVJB Valuation Roll KPI stats 2009/10 - 2018/19 

. · less than 3 months 

- Jess than 6 months 

50 -t---------

40 ~-----------~-~----------------

09/10 10/11 11/:J.2 12/13 13/14 l'!/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 

The chart further illustrates that our performance in relation to Valuation Roll maintenance has improved since the dip 
which ocurred prior to 2017 Revaluation.- · 

Lands Tribunal - 2005 and 2010 Appeals 

Appeals which have been referred to the Lands Tribunal are of a complex nature or are likely to have national 
implications. 2018/19 saw some limited progress in relation to disposal of these and, at 31 March 2019, 9 appeals 

.-remain outstanding from the 2005 cycle (13 at March 2018) and 48 appeals from the 2010.cycle (59.atMarch 2018). 

It is expected that appeals will continue to be disposed of through 20l 9/20 and that few, if any, ~f these appeals will 
re.quire local cases to be presented at the Lands Tribunal. 

2017 Running Roll Appeals 

During the year 192 new running roH appeals (i.e. notrelated to the Revaluation) were received and 51 were disposed 
of leaving 465 outstanding. A significant proportion of these appeals relate to the return of Shooting Rights to the 
Valuation Roll during 2017 /18. These running roll appeals will be disposed of in parallel with revaluation appeals, 
prior to-December 2020. · 

Barclay Review and Non-Domestic Rating Reform 

.The 201TReport of the Barclay Review of Non~domestic Rates ("the Barclay Review Report") contained 30 
individual recommendations on how the rates system in Scotland c,ould be refonned. The Scottish Government 
accepted the vast majority of the recommendations and added further measures to support investment and economic 
~~- . 

Subsequently, the Scottish Government ran a three month public consultation, "Barclay Implementation: A 
consultation on non-domestic rates reform", from 25th June to 17th September 2018 to seek views on the specific 
details ofhow the legislation underpinning several of the Barclay Review recommendations would work in a number 
of areas. The Assessor contributed to that consultation both through the SAA and by way of a direct submission. 

In February 2019 the Minister for Public Finance and Digital Economy announced the outcome of the consultation 
exercise and confinned the provisions that ~ould to be included in the draft Non-Domestic Rates (Scotland) B_iU. 
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DUNBARTONSHIRE AND ARGYU & BUTE VALUATION JOINT BOARD 
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

2.1 NON-DOMESTIC RATING (Cont'd) 

Barclay Review and Non-Domestic Rating Reform (Cont'd) 

r 
On 25 March 2019 the Scottish Government introduced the Non-Domestic Rates (Scotland) Bill which contains i 
several of the provisions required to implement Barclay recommendation albeit further secondary legislation will be : 
required to effect much of the detail. · · 

The main changes to the NOR system included iri the Bill, which affect the Assessor; are:-

(a) Revaluations are to be effective every 3 years from 2022; 
(b) The Valuation Roll will be required to mark new and improved properties to assistin the application of the 

''Business Growth Accelerator"; · . · 
(c) Certain properties located in pul:ilic parks wiil be.entered into the valuation roll for the first time; 
(d) The current appeals system will be replaced by a 2-stage proposals and appeals process; 
(e). · New civil penalties are to be introduced for non-provision of information; and 
(f) Assessors will be required to provide ratepayers with certain information on:how their.Rateable Values have 

been arrived. 

As well as providing more detail on the operation of the above, secondary legislation is expected to include a 
requirement to check that Self-Catering Units are actually let for 70 days in ariy year. It is also expected that the 
Scottish Government will separately require that there is much increased consultation with ratepayer representatives 
on valuation methods in advance of each Revaluation. · 

As many of the details of the forthcoming legislation are not yet known it remains difficult to be precise in projecting 
the specific consequences of the legislation. Notwithstanding this current lack of clarity and detail, it is clear that 
delivery of 3-yearly Revaluations and the various other miscellaneous changes can only be achieved through 
significant investment in people and development of ICT systems. 

An internal NDR Reform Project Teamwas established in early 2019 and, during the coming year, it will establish a 
Project Plan and Risk Register(s) for delivery of 3-yearly Revaluations, appeals ·system reform and all Barclay 
recommendations that are taken forward. Reporting to the Management Team, the ~oject Team will make 
recommendations in relation to process, operations and ICT development requirements. The Management Team will, 
however, retain responsibility for all final decisions in relation to ICT procurement and people resources. 

2.2 COUNCIL TAX 

Aims 

0 To maintain the Valuation List in accordance with the relevant legislation, to take account of new properties, 
properties which should no longer be entered in the List, properties which have been altered and sold, and other 

· changes arising from statute or other decisions ofthe Courts; 
• To issue Banding Notices to the appropriate parties; 
• To improve upon the time taken between the date that amendments to the Valuation List are effective and the 

date the Banding Notices a.re issµed; 
• To publish the Valuation List, make it available to the billing authority, the Keeper of Records and othe,r 

interested parties; . 
• To deal with proposals/appeals by discussion with ratepayers or their agents, or by hearing of appeals before the 

appropriate valuation appeal courts; and ' 
· • To keep property records up to date to take account of alterations.· I 

l,. 

Maintenance of Valuation List 

The year to 31st March 2019 saw 992 additions t~ the Council Tax List and a net increase in the mimberof dwelli.ngs 
shown in the Couneil Tax List as follows: · 

Total Number of entries@ 1st A ·12018 144,773 ! 
Total'Number of entries @ 31st March 2019 145,266 

t 
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DVNBAR.TONSHIRE AND ARGYLL & BUTE VALUATION JOINT BOARL> 
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

2.2 COUNCIL TAX (Cont'd) 

Maintenance ofValuation List (Cont'd)· 

The national·Key Performance Indicator in relation to Council Tax has been defined as the tiine taken from the date 
on which additions to the Valuation List are effective to the date a Banding Notice in respect ofthat riew entry is · 
issued. The following table sets out the target and actual performance infonnation for 2018/19 compared with the 
actual figures for 2017118: ' 

Actual 2018/19 

Period 
0-3 months . 
3-6months 
>6 months 

Actual. 
2017/18 

96% 
2% 
2% 

Target 
2018/19 

96% 
2% 
2% 

Argyll & 
Bute 

93% 
3% 
4% 

West 
Dunbartonshire 

"98% 
2% 
0% 

East 
Dunbartonshire 

98% 

1.5% 
0.5% 

Whole 
VJB Area 

96% 
2% 
2% 

.Thus our targets were achieved, despite a number ofproperties being added to the Council Tax Valuation List 
retrospectively following a Valuation Appeal Committee decision in an appeal relating to a group of former Self­
catering units. The result of that decision being that they were to be treated as dwellings and entered into the list, 
retrospectively. 

The pattern ofperformance over a longer period is shown below: 

DABVJB Council Tax i<Pls 2009/10 -18/19 

100 l ·r;1--;::::=~n.."'_. :::.::=~~~:~:SE:::3~!:::::!"'~~:_=,:1·.----f.=~:. 
~ ....,.... 

90 

llO 

Cl) 
C, 70 less than 3 months 
~ 

'"""' . less than 6 months 
-~ 

if 60 

50 +------~-----'--------------------

40 +------------~----'------------------

30 +-------r---,.---,----,--,--~-----.------r----r--~ 
09/10 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 

Proposals and App,eals 

During the year 327 (284 in 2017/18) new proposals to change property Bands were received and 300 were disposed 
of, leaving 191 outstanding at the end of the year. 
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DUNBARTONSHIREAND ARGYLL & BUTE VALUATION JOINT BOARD 
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

2.3 ELECTORAL REGISTRATION 

Aims 

. " To timeously compile and maintain the Electoral Register in accordance with the relevant legislation; 
• To deal promptly with all new applications to register under Rolling Registration; . 
• To deal with.all claims and objections relating to the Register; 
• To deal with applications for absent-votes, collect and securely store Personal Identifiers and maintain relevant 

Absent Voters lists; 
o To produce, and make available for sale, copies of the Electoral' Register in accordance with statutory 

arrangements; 
• To encourage ElectoralRegistration in i:he three constituent Council areas; and 
• To support the efficient running of elections within the J.oint Board area. 

Electoral Registration and Publication of the Register 

2018/19 was the third full year under the new 'Business-as-usual' Individual Electoral Registration (IER) regime. 
Initially we received £47,818 in funding from the Cabinet Office's Modernising·Electoral Registration Programme to 
cover the additional costs that the IER regime introduced and subsequently we received a further £18,204 following a 
'Justification Led Bid' application process. · 

Our.annual canvass commenced on 1 July with the issue of Household Enquiry Fonns (HEFs). Changes notified on. 
returned HEFs are used to initiate the issue of an Invitation to Register (ITR) or other relevant documentation. The 
canvass is thus a multi-stage process for each individual applicant or elector. The Cabinet Office has recognised the 
over-prescriptive nature of the canvass process since the introduction of IER and are planningto change the process 
again in 2020- see below. · · · 

The requirement to issue ITRs both during and outwith the annual canvass period removes the distinction between the 
two processes, thereby making reporting di_rectly on the canvass much more difficult. 

Notwithstan~ing the above, we issued the following HEFs, including reminders, during the canvass period with the 
majority of the 2nd reminders being issued via a door-to-door canvass as follows: · · 

Council Area Initial issue l st Reminder 2nd Remin~er %a2eReturn 
Ar1rvll & Bute 48,528 16,998 10,479. 87% 

East Dunbartonshire 46,806 18,407 11,181 86% 
West Dunbartonshire 45,235 22,758 16,286 73% 

VJB Total 140,569. 58.163 37,946 · 82% 

The total response rate of 82% compares well with previous canvass returns. 

Year Canvass 
return 

2018 82%. 

2017 80% 
2016 81% 
2015 75% 

Notably, the percentage return of forms at the. initial issue stage ':Vas up from 51 % in 2017 to 59% and this reduces the • 
administration and cost of the remainder of the canvass. The persistently low return rates for West Dunbartonshire, 
compared to the other two council areas, are a source of concern and West Dunbartonshire Council have completed 
some anaiysis ofreturns at a postcode level to see if there was any pattern oruseful information that could help and/or 
support our decision-making for future canvassing in the West Dunbartonshire Council area. 

, , 
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DUNBARTONSHIRE AND ARGYLL & BUTE VALUAT/ONJOINT BOARD 
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

2.3 ELECTORAL REGISTRf\ TION (Cont'd) 

Several methods'of making returns are provided to~lectors and a summary of the returns is shown below; 
, 

· 2017 Canvass 2018 Canvass ' 

Noof % age Noof %age 
Method of Resuonse Returns return Returns return 
Post 52,425 37.43% 54,347 38.66% 
Electronic {web/phone/SMS) 42,993 30.70% 45,432 32.32% 
Phone/Email contact 3,045 2.18% 2,935 2.09%. 
Door-to-door canvass 6,648 4.75% 6,075 4.32% 
Verified as second home/long term empty 5,615 4.01% 5,231 3.72%. 
Returned/Emotv/ Other 619 0.44% 1,308 0.93%, 
Total 111,345 79.51% 115.328 82.04% 

Notably, the growth in the use of electronic returns has started to slow and we will look to encourage a more 
significant channel shift toward these services for future canvasses. 

During the canvass period there were 6,912 electors added to the registers for the Join.t Board area and 9,501 
deletions: This resulted in a total electorate of 219,637 at publication on 1st December split as follows: 

Local Authority Electorate 
ArPVll & Bute 67,295 
East Dunbartonshire 67,662 
West Dunbartonshire 84,680 

The total electorate figure is down on the total at publication in December 2017, a pattern which tends to occur in 
years where there is no major electoral event. 

·. Year No ofElectors 
2018 219,637 
2017 22'.2,507 
2016 221,078 
2015 218,668 
2014 223,594 
2013 221,453 
2012. · 219,117 
2011 217,065 
2010 216,433 

·2009 215,460 

.The full Electoral Register can only be provided for certain limited statutory pUiposes, while the 'Open 
•Register' (also known as the 'Edited Register') can be sold to anyone for any purpose. At the end of the 2018 canvass 
the percentage of electors who had opted out was as follows: 

Year Electors Opted 
out 

2018 45.4% 
2017 42.0% · 
2016 39.3% 
2015 33.4% 
2014 26.0% 
2013 13.5% 
2012 19.5%, 
2011 21.0% 
2010 27.2% 
2009. 25.3% 
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DUNBARTONSHIREAND ARGYLL.& BUI'E VALUATION JOINT BOARD 
.ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

2.3 ELECTORAL REGISTRATION (Cont'd) 

Absent Voters 

denerally, the trend in numbers of absent voters onthe register over time has tended to be upwards but this trend 
appears to_ have been reversed since IER was introduced. · 

No ofAbsent 
Year Voters 
2018 34,110 
2017 35,918 
2016 37,764 

December 2015 ·, 38,376 
Februarv 2015 34,525 

. 2014 27,176 
2012 . 29;501 
2011 · 29,ITT6 
2010 27,36.S 

. 2009 . 24,899 

Rol~ing Registration 

Rolling Registration. is the process of dealing with appl.ications for changes to the Register which take place outwith 
the canvass period'. During 2018/19 there were 12,958 Additions to the register and 12,300 Deletions made through · 
the rolling,registration process. 

Historically,. the annual canvass provided significantly more change to the registers than rolling registration but the 
above illustrates that is no longer the case. · · 

IER requires a pro-active approach to change throughout the year and we have continued to use sources such as 
Council Taxpayer records, Education Authority data and house sales information to initiate the·issue of ITRs. 

Electoral Performance 

Our self-assessment is that we are compliant with each of the Eli:ctoral Commission'. s (EC) published performance 
standards albeit we are continually updating and reviewing how we complf The EC requests evidence of compliance 
from a sample ofEROs, annually, based on their own assessment ofrisk, and we were not asked to make such a 
submission during 2018/19. 

Alongside the Performance Standards regime, the EC and the Cabinet Office.have developed an extensive suite of 
reports on registration activity and register accuracy and completeness. Various reports were submitted to these 
bodies both during the annual can~ass and immediately following publication of the registers. 

Electoral Events 

Therewere no major or national elections during 2018/19 but registers were provided for Community Council and 
National Park elections. Towards the year end planning got under way for European Parliamentary Elections to be 
held in May 2019. 

Canvass RefQrm 

·Ajoint policy statement was issued by the UK, Welsh and Scottish Governments on 5 October 2018. The 
Governments sought views on a new model for future canvasses which will have a data (local and national) matching 
step at the start of the canvass, and will then allow a mixture of email, telephone and light touch contacts where most 
appropriate. This will allow for greater discretion for EROs to shape the canvass to activities which best suit their 
local circumstances. The consultation closed on 30 November 2018 and the VJB Management Team'provided input 
to the Scottish Assessors Association response.. · 

lO 
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DUNBARTONSHIREAND ARGYLL & BUTE VALUATION JOINT BOARD 
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 -, 

2.3 ELECTORAL REGISTRATION (Cont'd) 

Canvass Reform (Cont'd) 

The Scottish, Welsh and UK Governments are now working together to amend the legislation and guidance goveming 
the annual canvass by autumn 20l9. This timetable is set to allow sufficient time for the redesign, _ 
development and testing ·ofElectoral Management Systems, for guidance to be revised and training delivered in time 
for the revised model to be used for the 2020 autumn canvass. · 

.Miscellaneous Electoral Matters 

A Scottish Government Electoral Reform Consultation closed on 29 March 2018 and the consultation analysis report. 
was published on 12 October. Areas where reform is expected include extendn'.).g the power of the Electoral 
Management Board for Scotland, extension of the franchise for Scottish Parliament and Local Government elections 
to everyone resident in Si;otland, changes to the process.for Local Government Boundary reviews, restrictions to. one 
vote only at local government elections and changes to ballot paper layouts, though·a number of these issues are 
likely to be subject to further-consultation. 

. .. 
Separately, the Scottish Government consulted on the possibility of extending the franchise for Scottish Parliamentary 
and Local Government election to include some prisoners. The ERO c·ontributed to an SAA response to.the 
consultation which closed in March 2019. The SAA response.concentrated on the administrative and practical issues. 
arising from the proposals rather than on the principles of prisoner voting. The outcome of the consultation is, as yet,· 
unknown. 

3.0 GENERAL PROGRESS~ RELATION TO OTHER MATTERS 

3.1 INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATIONS TECHNOLOGY 

IT and Computer Provision 

The Valuation Joint Board's IT Strategy, provides direction and focus for the Joint Board as technology advances and 
the requirement for changes in processes continues .. The strategy: . 

• Supports the day-to-day.business of the Board; 
• Assists in the delivery of a high quality service; 
• Identifies the competencies required.for ICT support and development; and 
• Helps maintain partnerships with stakeholders. · 

Computers and IT systems continue to be maintained and upgraded as required to meet operational needs and in 
accordance with the recommendations from West Dunbartonshire Council's ICT Service. During the year .we 
installed 2 PCs and 9 laptops to replace obsolete devices. -

A review ofthe Board's_ network infrastructure and business continuity arrangements was commenced in partnership 
with West Dunbartonshire Council and this will conclude during 2019/20. · 

Our Electoral Management System was upgraded several times througbout the year to provide functiona'lity 
improvements and ensure continued compliance with requirements. · 

A new online customer satisfaction system which was developed to replace existing procedures was implemented 
. from April 2018 and, although the web interface was fully functional, the attempt to drive service users ·on-line ·was. 
not successful. We therefore·retumed to sampling recent service users and invited them to make submissions, 
following which we saw an upturn in responses both in paper and on-line. A new complaints recording system was 
also developed and implemented. 

In conjunction with WestDunbartonshire Couttcil our IT team have also been involved in the identification of a 
suitable Geographic Information System (GIS) replacement. 
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DUNBARTONSHIRE AND ARGYLL & BUTE VALUATION JOINT BOARD 
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

3.1 INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATIONS TECHNOLOGY (Cont'd) 

Scottish Assesso·rs Association Web Site . 

Throughout the year, staff continued to actively participate.in the Project's Management Committee, Project Team 
and Working Group to enhance the SAA web portal (www.saa.gov.uk:); This provides single point access.to 
Valuation Roll, Council Tax List and Electoral Registration information on an Ml-Scotland basis. 

Through publication of the SAA Issues Log, .Contact List and Barclay Action Plan, the ~ite has been instrumental in 
helping to deliver the improved transpiirency required by the Barclay Review:It has also been used for thefirst time 
as the vehicle for stakeholder consultations. · 

The major piece of work for the project during 2018/19, however, was the planning for, and early stages of migration 
of, the sites to a new database and content management system (CMS). These changes.should permit more options 
and flexibility when procuring hosting, support and development contracts in the future. 

3;2 BEST VALUE 

Key Performance Indicators and Public Performance Reporting 

. Performance in respect of Valuation Roll and Council Tax Key Performance Indicators is reported above. Our 
2017/18 Public Performance Report was published during 2018/19 on our web site (www .saa.gov.uk/dab-vjb/). 

•\ . . 

Perfonnance Management and Planning 

The Management Teamcontinues to be the main forum for planning and management of performance. In accordance 
with our Performance and Management Planning process, the following improvement actions were taken, or were 
ongoing, during 2018/19: · 

• A revised Counter Fraud and Corruption Strategy was approved by Joint Board and implemented along with 
the introduction of a new Business Irregularities Procedures specific to the Valuation Joint Board; 

• · A new Data Protection Policy was approved and implemented, along with associated Data Audit, Data Breach 
procedutes, a Subject Access Request procedure and a Privacy Impact Assessment process. Contracts, 
includipg those with data processors, have been reviewed. A Data Protection Officer was appointed and 
appropriately trained. New Privacy Notices were ii;nplemented across all areas of function including internal 
personnel data. Tllis all resulted in a positive report being issued following an Internal Audit of Data 
Protection and Freedom of Information procedures; , · 

• An annual self-assessment against the CIPFA/Solace "Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: 
Framework''. was carried out with the resultant Action Plan approved by Joint Board; 

• A Communications Strategy was developed and approved to enhance openness and stakeholder engagement; 
• Written definitions of the roles of Clerk and Treasurer were developed and approved by the Joint Board; 
• An assessment of the risks associated with the UK's withdrawal from the EU was completed allowing risks or 

uncertainties arising from the planned withdrawal to be considered and managed/mitigated as required; 
• The Risk Management Strategy was revised and approved by Joint Board; 
• Several Personnel/HR-related Policies, including a revised Code of Conduct for officials, were updated and 

appi;oved by the Board during 2018/19, ensuring alignment with current best practice and the support 
structures ofWest Dunbartonshire Council; and . 

• The Financial Strategy, which covers a 10 year period and presents a number of scenarios, was updated and 
presented to the Board; 

·The above represent real comrilitments to the Best Value regime.and to continuous improvement. The current 
financial restrictions have imparted an efficiency driven ethos in many of our operations, but we will continue to 
strive to provide improving services. 
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DUNBARTONSHIREAND ARGYLL & BUTE VALUATION J()INT BOARD. 
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH 2019 

3.2 BEST VALUE (Cont'd) 

Audit 

During the year Internal Audit completed a review of, and reported on, our compliance with Freedom of Information 
and Data Protection Legislation. . · · 

The report conduded that the systems examined in relation to compliance with Freedom of Information and Data 
Pro_tection legislation were working effectively~A number of opportunities to strengthen internal controls were 
identified, however, and the agreed ac.tions have either been effected or will be in the early part of the 2019/20 
financial year, . · 

The finances of the Joint Board for 2018/19 were audited by Audit Scotland and the report has concluded that the 
financial statements of the Joint Board were properly prepared and give a true and fair view. Expenditure and income 
were presented.in accordance with applicable enactments and guidance. An unqualified independent auditor's report 
was issued and can be found on pages 52-55 of the annual accounts. 

An Audit Plan was completed which identified the main areas where they will direct scrutiny, as follows: 

• ·Ensure that controls are in place to ensure that management cannot override financial controls; 
• Ensure that systems are in place to prevent and detect fraud in relation to expenditure; · 
• Investigate and evaluate the risk of material misstatement"in the financial statements; 
• A Review of the financial sustainability of the Joint Board; and , 
• Evaluate the risk of failure to deliver on Barclay requirements due tci insuffi,cient resources 

Customer Satisfaction 

For some years, users oftheJoint.Board's services were randomly sampled and issued with questionnaires to seek 
their perception of the service provided to them. In April 2018 we introduced anew web-based survey form and 
added a short invitation to provide feedback on many of our outgoing items of correspondence. The aims of this 
change were to: · · · 

(a) streamline the administration of the system; 

(b) encourage a 'channel shift' to on-line returns, thereby enabling automated analysis and reporting; and 

(c) increase the number of service users providing us with feedback. 

Over the first 6 months of the year, however, the returns were much reduced on previous years so in October we 
reverted to sampling recent users and issuing thein with a questionnaire. Total returns for the year were, however; 
down on previous years. - · 

A summary of the ,results for the year is proyided mi page 14. These show that: 

• By far the majority of our stakeholders (94%) find us professional, courteous and helpful; 
• 60% of queries or transactions are completed at the first point of contactand only 7% of matters are not 

concluded to the satisfaction of the stakeholder; 
• Most users of Joint Board services (93%) are satisfied with t.l1e inf01:mation and/or advice provided to them;

and . . . 

• Very high satisfaction levels arc being achieved on a year-to-year basis. 
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DUNBARTONSHIRE AND ARGYLL & BUTE VALUATION JOINT BOARD 
ANNUALACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

3.2 BEST VALUE (Cont'd) 

Custom.er Satisfaction (Cont'd) 

· 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 
Survey Return Rate 28% 27% 21% 18% 19% 21% NIA 

Was the personwith whom 
you communicated 
professional, courteous and 
helpful? 

97% .98% 99% 97% 97% 99% 94% 

Was the ~tter brought to a. 
satisfactory conclusion 
immediately? 

58% 55% 67% 62% 68% 62% · 60% 

Was the matter brought to a 
satisfactory conclusion? 98% 96% 97% 96% 97% 

, 

97% 93% 

Are you satisfied with the 
quality of the jnformation or 
advice given to you? 

96% . 96% 97% 94%. 97% 96% 93% 

No Customer Satisfaction fonns were requested in alternative languages, Braille or other formats. A breakdown of the 
returns which indicated the relevant protected characteristics is shown below: 

Characteristic Category %age Characteristic Category %age Characteristic Category %age 

Race White 
98% 

Age· 16-21 3% Marital status Mamed 57% 

Non-white 
'2% 

22-30. 7% Never 
M!ll'(led 

13% 

Gender Male 
48% 

31-40 7% Other 30% 

Female 
52% 

41-50 17% 

Disability Disabled 
16% 

. 51-60 20% 

Able-bodied 
84% 

61-65 12% 

Sexual 
orientallon 

Heterosexual 
97% 

66-70 16% 

Other 
3% 

70+ 19% 

Sample sizes within the various equalities groups were too small to draw finn conclusions but the results are 
monitored by management with any apparent variations within any of the groups with protected characteristics being 
followed up to ensure that we are carrying out-ourfunctions in a fair and equitable manner. 

Complaints Procedure 

The Joint Board operates a Complaints Procedure which is in line with the Public Sector Ombudsman's Model 
Complaints Handling Procedure. · · 

There were a total of 18 Complaints received during 2018/19, compared to 14 in 2016/17 and 15 in 2017/18, with 17 
relating to Electoral Registration. 9 complaints were resolved at the Frontline Resolution stage with 9 being escalated 
to the Investigation stage. One Investigation relating to the Assessor's actions and handling of personal data was 
carried out by the Legal Services Department of West Dunbartonshire Council. No complaints were referred to the 
Ombudsman. · · 

The main area of complaint within Electoral Registration was around the annual canvass; a process that is largely 
prescribed in legislation, and the total number of complaints has to be viewed in the context of the issue of over 
230,000 canvass forms. · 
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DUNBARTONSHIRE AND ARGYU & BUTE VALUATION JOINT BOARD· 
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

3.2 BEST VALUE (Cont'd) 

Financial Performance · 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

This account covers the day-to-day operational expendirure of the Joint Board and is shown on page 31 of the Annual 
Accounts. On an accounting basis the deficit on the provisfon of service for the financial year reported in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement fa J0.756m. However this talces account of adjustments between 
the accounting and funding basis of(£0.757m) and the in-year surplus of£0.00lm as shown in the table below: 

Comprehensive 
Income& 

Expenditure 
Statement 

Statutory 
Ad.iustments Actual Budeet Variance 

' £000 £000 .£000 £000 £000 
Emolovee Costs . 2,792 (651) 2,141 2,200 (59) 
Property Costs 100 0 100 126 (26). 

· Transport Costs 41 0 41 45 (4) 
Suoolies & Services 242 0 242 291 (49) 
Payments to Other Bodies 35 0 35 45 (10) 
Surmort Services 125 0 125 125 0 
Depreciation &Amortisation · 13 (13) 0 0 0 

· Other Costs (Interest; :Pensions) 94 (93) 1 0 1 
Total EYnenditure 3,442 .(757) · 2,685 2,832 (147) 

RequisitionIncome (2,611) 0 (2,611) (2,611) 0 
Grant Income (66) , 0 · (66) (60) (6) 
Rental Income (2) 0 (2) (2) .Q 

Sales, Fees & Charges (7) 0 (7) (3) (4) 
Total Income (2,686) 0 (2,686) (2,676) (10) 

(157) 
·, 

(Surolus)/Deficit for the vear 756 (757) (1) 156 

The main budget variances are shown 1:)elow: 

Spend Area Variance Comments 
£000 

Emolovee (59) This underspend is mainlv due to non-fillin2 of vacancies. 
Property (26) This underspend is mainly due to lower than anticipated 

expenditure on rates, ener2V and accommodation costs. 
Supplies & Services (49) This underspend is across. a number ofheadings (such as machine 

lease, computer licences, telephones, printing & stationery). 
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DUNBARTONSHIREAND ARGYLL & BUTE VALUATION JOINT BOARD 
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2()19 

3.2 BEST VALUE (Cont'd) 

Balance Sheet 

The balance sheet is shown on page 34 and features an assessed pension fund liability of £5.217m .based on the 
valuation of the fund at 31 March_ 2019. This results in the Board's Balance Sheet showing a net liabilities position. 
Further information on the pension fund is prQvided in note 4 on pages 44 to 47 and the valuation states that assets 
held at the valuation date were sufficient to cover only 81 % of the accrued liabilities. It is considered,appropriate that 
the 'Annual· Accounts · should follow a 'going concern'· basis of accounting. Statutory arrangements with the 
constituent lOcal authorities mean that the financial position of the Board remains assured. 

The pension scheme net liability has increased by £2.077m as advised by the appointed actuaries, and this is mainly 
as a result of the movement in the discount rate. Tlie appointed actuaries -remain of the view that the asset holdings of 
Strathclyde Pension Scheme and the contributions from employees and employers together with planned increases in 
employer' contributions provide sufficientsecurj.ty and income to meet future pension liabilities . 

.General Reserves 

At their Board meeting on the 16November 2012, the Board approved a Balance and Reserves Policy. The Board's 
Prudential Reserves Policy is to retain a prudential target of 2% of net expenditure i.e. constituent authority 
requisition level (18/19 £52,223) or£100,000, whichever is higher. · 

Funds held in excess of the prudential target can be spent or earmarked at the discretion of Board Members on behalf 
ofthe constituent authorities.· · · 

As at 31 March 20J9 the Board held total _usable reserves of £0.577m (ofwhich £0.025m relates to unapplied capital 
reserves) with the remaining balance comprising revenue reserves. of £0.552m. A proportion of this is identified as an 

. earmarked balance (£0.162m) to balance the.2019/20 budget and once this has been accou~ted for leaves £0.390rn of 
general reserves for future use (including £100,000 prudential reserve .above). 

The Joint Board recognises the difficult financial climate facing public services and has continued to seek efficiencies 
where possible. The level of requisition made by the Board for 2018/19 remained the same as 2017/18. Given the 
forecast reduction iri funding for local government into the future it is anticipated that levels of funding may be 
challenging going forward int·o 2019/20 and beyond and management have commenced planning for this to ensure 
ongoing service delivery reflecting the increasing workload to the Board. · · 

Provisions and Contingencies 

The Joint Board is not aware of any eventualities which may have a material effect on the financial position of the 
Joint Board, and has made no provisions for such eventualities. · · 

Group Annual Accounts 

The Joint Board has· been determined to have an "associate" relationship with each of its constituent authorities and, 
as such, the Joint Board's results have been consolidated into each authority's group income and expenditure Annual 
,Accou~ts. 
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DUNBARTONSHIRE AND ARGYU & BUTE VALUATION JOINT BOARD 
ANNll_AL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

3.2 BEST'VALUE (Cont'd) 

Risk Management 

The Joint Board's Risk Management Strategy and Procedures were revisea'and approved by the J~int Board in June 
2018. Risk·Registers and Action Plan are revised ~ually. Inclusions in the· Board RiskRegister during the year 
were: 

c• The potential for the Joint Board or its statutory officials.to fail. to meet their respective statutory duties; 
• The financial and service performance risks associated with static or reduced funding levels, particularly in 

light ofnew and increasing duties and responsibilities; . . . 
• The risks arising from the reform of Non-Domestic Rates arising from the Non-Domestic Rates (Scotland) Bill 

and other 'Barclay' requirements; . 

• The dependency ofthe Joint Board on ICT for delivery of its statutory functions and service delivery; and 
• Planned changes to the Electoral Registration system including canvass reform, the possible extension of the 

right of overseas electors, the fotroduction of voting rights for (some) prisoners and the extension of the 
·fra~chiseJor some polls to all residents of ~cotland. · · 

. . 

All risks have planned actions to mitigate or minimise the risk and progress against these actions is regularly 
monitored at fylanagement Team meetings.. 

Separately, and in line with recommendations from Audit Scotland, an assessment of the risk to the Joint Board of the 
UK's proposed withdrawal from the European Union as originally scheduled on 29 March 2019, was carried outin · 
December 2018. This allowed the Management Team to conclude that the risks to the Joint Board were generally low 
and could be managed or mitigated. The subsequent extensions to the UK'·s membership did introduce the need for 
the UK to take part in elections to the European Parliament on 23 May'2019. As this was an unplanned event, it did. 
constitute an additional burden on our registration service but the resources.and training required for any·electoral 
event are in place and the risks should be manageable, albeitat a marginal additional.cost. 

3.3 EQUALITIES 

The Joint Board's Management Team is committed to.ensuring equality in all that it does. 

Arising from the Specific Duties Which were established by the Scottish Government subsequent to The Equality Act 
2010, the Joint Board established that its stated Equality 'Outcomes' are as follows: 

• ·We are seen as an il).clusive equal opportunities employer where all staff feel valued and respected; and 
• Our Services meet the needs of, and are accessible to all members of our community and our staff treat all 

service users, clients and colleagues with dignity and respect. 

The number of staff who identified themselves as having a disability has increased significantly since the base line 
~ilrvey, thereby indicating progress against the first stated Outcome. · · 

As indicated abo.ve, our Customer Sittisfaction results are inconclusive in respect of service provision across the 
protected characteristics in 2018/1,9. Looking·at results over a longer period, however, indicates tliat we are providing 
fair and equitable services to all parts of our communities. . 

3.4 STAFFING MATrERS 

Development and Training 

The Board's Staff Development and Training procedures provide for a structured and strategic provision of training 
and development opportunities for all members of staff. Each employee reviews their training needs with their line 
manager on an annual basis and the resultant Training and Development Plan is used to inform the provision of 
training throughout the year. ·· · · · 

In 2018/19 training was provided through externally sourced courses, in-)louse training events and e-learning facilities 
·in a range of subjects including variou~ aspects ofElectoral Registration, process management ("Lean 6-Sigma"), 
Attendance Management, preparing for an electoral event (including security of the poll) and data protection. A 
'Core' t;raining programme has been established and this requires staff to complete refresher training in various topics. 
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3.4 STAFFING MATTERS (Cont'd) 

Formal training is ongoing for four Trai~ee Valuers, two of whom are undergoing their Assessment of Professional 
Competence. One member of staff is currently undertaking the final year of a distance learning course for the 
Association of Electoral Administrators 'Certificate' level qualification. . 

Personnel Poli~es 

During the year, and in line with the approach in West Dunbartonshire Council, the Board also approved the 
following for implementation: . 

(a) A revise.d Attendance Management Policy and Procedure; 
(b) A new Maternity.Leave Scheme; 
(c) A new Special Leave Scheme; 
(d) A new Carers Leave Scheme; 
(e) A revised Bereavement Leave Scheme; 
(f) A revised Alcohol and Substance Misuse Policy; 
(g) A revised Code of Conduct for Employees; ·• 

. (h) A revised Disciplinary Policy and Procedure; and 
(i) A new Domestic Violence and Abuse Policy. 

Voluntary Early Retirement and Voluntary Severance 

In June 2016, lllld in recognition of the funding gaps being projected in the Board's indicative budgets, the Joint 
Board agreed that the Assessor should consider offering staff Voluntary Early Reti~ment/Severance (VER/S) on 
similar terms to those prevailing in West Dunbartonshire Council. 

In August 2018 four members of staff expressed an interest in leaving the Joint Board's service through VER. The 
criteria for release were not met in any of these cases, though one staff member did procee.d to retire without 
accessing the VER scheme .. 

3.5 FREEDOM OF INFORMATION 

The Joint Board's 'Guide to Information' was updated and maintained as required with relevant documents available 
from https://www .saa.gov .uk/dab-vjb/download/2239/ 

A 'business as usual' app~ach has been taken to the majority ofrequests for information received, but in the calendar 
year to December 2018, 58 requests which specifically referred tothe Freedom of Infonnation Act were receive.d. 
This compares to 21 requests in 2017. 

Three. requests receive.d related to Electoral Registration, a function which is not currently covered under the Fol 
legislation. However, in the spirit of applying best practice, these requests were responded to as if they had been 
covered by the legislation, with one request being answered· in full and two requests were refuse.d. There were·49 
requests relating to Non-J:?omestic Rating, 47 of which were made by the same company or individuals employe.d by 
the same company. Much of the information requested was information that would have been made available during 
the appeals process. Two requests related to our Council Tax functions and 4 were of a general nature or crossed over 
our statutory functions. · 

All requests were answered within the statutory timescales with the average response time being just over 16 days. 
There were no requestsfor Reviews. Dealing with requests took over 45 hours of staff time and no fees were charged. 

We now.provide quarterly reports on requests receive.d and their outcomes to the Informap.on Commissioner. 

3.6 DATA PROTECTION 

Both the Joint Board and the Assessor & ERO have always had firm commitments to the proper storage and secure 
processing ofpersonal data btit the. additional requirements of the new General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR), 
which came into effect in May 2018, meant that all processes, procedures and practices relating to personal data had 
to be reviewed. · · · 

18 

https://Informap.on
https://www


DUNBARTONSHIRE ANDARGYU & BUTE VALUATION JOINT BOARD 
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

3.6 DATA PROTECTION (Cont'd) 

To meet the new 'requirements of the GDPR and the Data Protection Act (2018), a new Data Protection Policy was 
approved by the Joint Board and implemented along with the associated Data Audit, Data Breach procedures, Subject 
Access Requestprocedure and Privacy Impact Assessment process. Contracts, including those held with data 
processors, were reviewed. A Data Protection Officer was appointed and all Privacy Notices were reviewed. 

As previously agreed with the internal auditor, an audit of our compliance was carried out. The scope of the audit was 
expanded to include our compliance with Freedom of Infortnation legislation. The positive report received following 
the audit is referred to above. · · 

·3.7 RECORDS MANAGEMENT 

In February 2016, and in accordance with the requirements of The Public Records (Scotland) Act 2011, the Keeper of 
the Records approved the Joint Board's Records M:anagement Plan (RMP) and agreed an improvement action plan 
which the Board continued to implement throughout 2018/19. · · 

· Under sections 5(1) & (2) o~ the Act the Keeper may only require a review of an authority's agreed RMP five years 
after the date the plan was agreed. The Keeper has, however, developed a voluntary Progress Update Review (PUR) 
mechanism to allow authorities to demonstrate progress.towards completion of any action plan and to receive 
constructive ~vice on.ongoing developments. 

A PUR submission, which took the form of a self-assessment against each of the elements in the RM:P.·was made to 
the Keeper's Assessment Teamin October 2018. In December 2018 the Keeper approved the Joint Board's PUR ;md 
noted that the Board continues to take its records management obligations seriously and. that significant progress had 
been made in relation to the action plan. · 

3.8 PARTNERSHIPS 

The Valuation Joip.t Board is actively involved in seyeral partnerships with one df the-most significant of these being 
the senior staff's membership of the Scottish Assessors' Association. The Association is constituted to facilitate a 
consistency ofapproach in the administration of the Non-Domestic Rating Valuation, Council Tax and Electoral' 
Registration Services ·across Scotland. It works through aseries of Committees and associated Working Groups, 
which report to regular plenary sessions that are attended by representatives from all Assessors' offi,ces. 

Valuation Joint Board staff are represented in the Association in all of its Category Committees, in working groups 
and as authors of Practice Notes which are used to implement all-Scotland approaches to the valuation of various 
subject types. The co-operation and co-ordination of the Association is of critical importance in the completion, and 
defence, o_f a Revaluation. 

During 2018/19 the Association made a submission to the Scottish Government's "Barclay Implementation: A 
consultation on non-domestic rates reform" and subsequently provided information and ai:Ivice during the drafting of 
the Non-Domestic Rates (Scotland) Bill. It will also be used as a consultative body as the Bill makes its way through 
the various Parliamentary Committee stages in 2019/20. A project manager has been established to lead on the role 
the SAA might take in successful delivery of NDR reform and the Barclay requirements. Consequent to the Barclay 
Review recommendations, the SAA published its firstAnnual Report on the 2017/18 year in June 2018. 

The SAA also. collated a response to the Scottish Go_vemment's Consultation Paper on Prisoner Voting. 

The SAA continued to liaise with the Valuation Office Agency (VOA) in England a..;d Wales, the Northern Ireland 
Land & Property Services Agency (Nil.PS) and the Republic of Ireland Valuation Office (IVO) in matters of 
common interest. . 

The plaoning for, and provision of, Electoral Registration services is assisted by guidance received from the Electoral. 
Commission and the. Electoral 'Management Board ofScotland and by. representation within the Association of 
Electoral Administrators. The Cabinet Office has also become an important stakeholder in respect of further 
modernisation ofElectoral Registration services. · · 

The Valuation Joint Board obtains all of its 'back-office' func;tions.including human resources, legal support, ICT 
support and financial .services from West Dunbartonshire Couficil under a Servicii Level Agreement. Thanks are due 
to ajl of the West Dunbartonshire Council officials who supportthe J9int Board. · 
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4.0 CONCLUSION 

The major focus on the NDR valuation side of our operations 2018/19 was disposal of Revaluation appeals. 
Good progress was made in this regard, particularly in the early months of the year. Progress later in the yearwas 
hindered somewhat by the dependency on others in the Scottish Assessors Associa~on taking 'lead cases' in a variety 
of property categories .. Notwithstanding that, by the end ofMarch 2019, 2,135 appeals, representing 59.8% of those 
submitted; had been di~posed of. This compares e,cactly with progress at the similar time following the 2010 · 
Revaluation:- ' 

Despite the focus on appeai disposal, our performance in relation to maintenance of both the Valuation Roll and 
Council Tax Lists was maintained at high levels. 

The IER system is now well establisl).ed. The.annual canvass return was up on last year, albeit the lower rates of 
return in-the West Dunbartonshire area continue to be a source of concern, and the register was published on 1 •t 

December as is re'quired by statute. 

There was a vacancy on the Board ~t the start ofthe year but I am p1eased to report that West Dunbartonshire Council 
nominated Bailie Denis Agnew to complete our complement of Members. Our congratulations go to Cllr Donald 
MacMillan, BEM on the award of the Medal of the Order of the British Empire to him for his services to local 
government in the 2019 Ne_w.Year Honours List. 

Thanks are due to all staff and management for their endeavour, effort and co-operation throughout the year.· 
Similarly, thanks are due to the Joint Board, and in particular, the Convenor and Vice Convenor for their continued 
support. · 

Councillor Richard Trail David Thomson Stephen West 
Convenor ofthe Board Assessor and Electrical Registration Officer Treasurer 
Date: 25 September 2019 · Date: 25 September 2()19 Date: 25 September 201-9 r 
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DUNBARTONSHIRE AND ARGYLL & 8UTE VALUATION JOINT BOARD 
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REMUNERATION REPORT 

Introduc.tion 

The remuneration report has been prepared in accordance. with the Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 
2014. These Regulations require various disclosures about the remnneration and pension benefits of the Board and 
senior employees. AH information disclosed in the tables 1-5 of the Remuneration Report will be audited by Audit 
Scotland. The other sections have also been reviewed by Audit Scotland to ensure that they are consistent with the 
Financial Statements. 

Arrangements for Remuneration 

No Councillors serving on the board (including the Convenor and Vice-Con'l'.enor) receive any form of remuneration 
in respect of these roles · 

The Board sets the remuneration levels for senior officers. Its role is to ensure the application and implementation of 
fair and equitable systems for pay and for performance management wi.thin the guidelines of and as· determined by the 
Scottish Ministers and the Scottish Government In reaching its decisions, the Board has regarded the need to recruit, 
retain and motivate suitably able and qualified people to exercise their different responsibilities. 

The remuneration of senior employees is set by reference to national arrangemen~s. The Board does notpay bonuses 
or performance related pay. Chief Officers receive business mileage and. subsistence allowances in accordance with 
amounts either agreed nationally by the Scottish Joint National Council (SJNC) or as approved locally by the Board, 
Chief Officers are eligible to join the Local Government Pension Scheme .(LGPS). The scheme is described in the 
Pension Benefits section. · · 

Remuneration 

The term remuneration means as defined by the Regulations noted above, gross salary, fees and bonuses, allowances 
and expenses, and costs in relation to Early Retiral and Voluntary Severance. It excludes pension contributions paid 
by the Board. Pension contributions made to a person's pension are disclosed as part of the pension benefits 
disclosure. · · 

Table l: Remuneration of Senie1r Employees 

Year ended 31 March 2019 2017/18 
Salary, 
Fees & Total Restated 

Allowances R:emuneration Total Remuneration 
Name Position at 31/03/19 · £000 £000 £000 
David Thomson Assessor & Electoral 

Registration Officer 99 99 96 
Robert Nicol DeputeAssessor & ERO 79 79 77 

Notes 
1. The term senior employee means any Board employee: 
• Who has responsibility for the management of the board to the extent that the person has the power to direct or 

control the major activities ofthe board (including activities involving the expenditure of money), during the 
. year to which the Report relates, whether solely or collectively with other persons; ·or · 

• Who holds a post that is politically restricted by reason of section 2(1) (a), (b} or (c) of Local Go'(emment and 
Housing Act 1989 (4); or . 

• Whose annual remuneration, including any remuneration from a local authority subsidiary body, is £150,000 
or more. 

21 



l 
i 

DUNBARtONSHIRE A!VD ARGYU & BUTE VALUATION JOINT BOARD 
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH2019 

REMUNERATION REPORT (Cc,nt'd) 

Remunerationof Employees receiving more than £5~i000 

The Board's employees receiving more than £50,000 remuneration for the year were paid the following amounts. In 
accordance with the disclosure. requirement of the Regulations, the infonnation in the table shows the number of 
employees in bands of i;:5,000..This iriformation includes the senior employees who are subject to the fuller disclosure 

· requirements-in the tables above. · · 

Table 2: Remuneration Bands Number of Employees 
Restated 

£ 2018/2019 2017/2018 
55,000 to 59,999 2 2 
75,000 to 79,999 I 1 
95,000 to 99,999 I 1 
Total 4 4 

Pension Benefits 

The LGPS 2015 is a career average pension scheme. This means that pension benefits from 01/04/2015 are b·ased on 
pensionable pay with inflation added. Pension is accrued at a rate of 1/49 of pensionable pay for each scheme year. 
Pension benefits can be accessed from age 60 but are reduced if taken earlier than Normal pension Age (State Pension 
Age). Pension benefits accrued before 1 April 2015 are protected and are based on final pay on retiring. 

From 1 April i009, a five tier contribution system was introduced with contributions from scheme rneiiibers being 
based on how much pay falls into each tier. This.is designed to give niore equality between the cost and benefits of 
scheme membership. Table 3 provides information on these tiered contribution rates. 

Table 3: Contribution Rate 

The th:rs and members contributions rates for 2018/19 whole time pay Contribution 
rate 2018/19 

On earnings up to and including £21,300 5.50% 
On earnings above £21,300 and up to £26,100 7.25% 
On earnings above £26,IOOand up to £35,700 8.25% 
On earnings above £35,700 and up to £47,600 9.50% 
Ori earnings above £47,600 12.00%. 

If a person works part-time their contribution rate is worked out on the whole-time pay rate for the job, with actual 
contributions paid on actual pay earne(l. There is no automatic entitlement to a lump sum. Members may opt to give 
up (commute) pension for lump sum up to the limit setby the Finance A.et 2004. The accrual rate guarantees a 
pension based on 1149th ofpay froµi 1 April 2015. Prior to this the accrual rate guarantees a pension based on 1160th 
of final pensionable salary. and years of pensionable service. Prior to 2009 the accrual rate guaranteed a pension based 
on· usOth and a·lump swn based on 3180th of final pensionable salary and years of pensionable service. 

The value of the accrued benefits has been calculated en the basis of the age at which the person will first become 
entitled to receive a pension on retirement without reduction on account of its payment at that age; without exercising 
any option to commute pension entitlement into a lump sum; and without any adjustment for the effects of future 
inflation. · 
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DUNBARTONSHIRE AND ARGYLL & BUTE VALUATION JOINT BOARD 
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

REMUNERATION REPORT (Cont'd) 

Pension Benefi,ts ofSenior Employees 

Table 4 : In-year contributions and accrued benefits 

For year to 31 March 2019 For year to 31 March 2018 

In-year A.ccrued pension benefits In-year' Accrued pension benefits 
contribution Pension Lump· Sum contribution Pension Lump Sum 

Name £000 _£000 £000 £000. £000 '£000 
David Toomson '21 46 86 i9 44 85 
Robert Nicol 17 29 45 15 27 44 

L The LGPS is a career average pension scheme. This means that pension benefits from i April 2015 are based on 
pensionable pay with inflation added, Pension is accrued at a rate of 1/49 of pensionable pay for each scheme year. 
Pension_ benefits can be accessed from age 60 but are reduced if taken earlier than Normal Pension Age (State 
Pension Age). Pension benefits accrued before 1 April 2015 are protectedand are based on final pay on retiring.• 

· 2. The lump sum, which is automatically paid when the person retires for service up to 31 March 2009, is three times 
his or her annual pension and is tax-free. There is no automatic lump sum for service after 31 March 2009. 
Members may opt to give up (commute) pension for lump sum upto the limit set by the Finance Act 2004. 

3. The value of the accrued benefits in the above tables has been calculated on the basis ofthe age at which the 
person will. first become entitled to receive a full pension on retirement without reduction on account· of its 
payment at that age; without exercising. any option to commute pension entitlement into a lump sum; and without 
any adjustment for the effects of future inflation. The pension age for members of the LGPS is 65. 

4. The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the person has accrued as consequence of their total local 
government' service, and not just their current appointment. 

5. The Local Government (Discretionary J>ayments and Injury Ben\:fits) (Scotland) Regulations 1998 make provision 
for authorities to,make discretionary payments to local government employees to pay compensation for premature 
retirement. There were no discretionary payment$ made to senior employees during the year. 

Exit Packages 

There were no exit packages during financial years 2018/19 and 2017/18. 
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!DUNBARTONSHIRE AND ARGYLL & BUTE VALUATION JOINT BOARD 
ANNUALACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 . 

REMUNERATION REPORT (Cont'd) 

Trade Union Facility Time · 

Facility Time: generates benefits for employees, managers and the wider community from effective joint working 
between union representatives and employers. 

Details. of the Facility Time within Dunbartonshire and Argyll & Bute Valuation Joint Board during the year to 
31 March 2019 are shown in the table below. · 

Table 5: Trade Union 

Trade Union Officials Trade .Union 
Representative 

0 l 

Percentage of.Time Spent on Facility Time 
Percentage Employees. 
Less <1 · 1 
1-50% 0 
51%- 99% 0 
100% 0 

Total cost of facility time 
· £100 

Total pay bill 
£2,099,151 

Percentage ofPay Bill Spent on Facility Time 
0.005% 

Paid TU Activities 
100% 

Councillor Richard Trail David Thomson 
Convenor of the Board Assessor and Electrical Registration Officer 
Date: 2.5 September 2019 Date: 25 September 2019 
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DUNBARTONSHIRE AND ARGYU & BUTE VALUATION JOINT BOARD 
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBIU.TIES 

The Boards Responsibilities: 

The Board is reqwred to: 

• .make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that the 
proper officer of the Board has responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this 
Board, that officer is the Treasurer; 

• manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard 
its assets; 

• ensure the Annual Accounts are prepared in accordance with legislation (The Local Authority 
Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014), and is compatible with that legislation, in accordance 
with proper accounting practices (section 12 of the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003); 
and 

• approve the Annual Accounts for signature. 

rconfirm that the Annual Accounts were approved for signature by the Board at its meeting 
on 25 September 2019. 

Signed on behalfofDon~.nshire.~•~'..~II & Bute Valuation Joint Board 

Councillor Richard Tail \°"'\f<'C),A).
"Convenor of the Board 
Date: 25 September 2019 

The Treasurer's Responsibilities: 

The Treasurer is responsible for the preparation of the Board's Annual Accounts in accordance 
with proper practices as required by legislation and as set out in the CIPF AILASAAC Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Accounting Code) . 

. Jn preparing the Annual Accounts, the Treasurer has: 

• selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently; 

• made judg~ments and estimates ,that were reasonable and prudent; 

• complied with legislation; and 

• complied with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom. 

The Treasurer has also: 

• kept adequate accounting records which were up to date; and 

• taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities; 

I certify that the Financial Statements give a true and fair view ofthe financial position of the Board at the reporting 
date and the transactions of Board for the year ended 31 March 2019. 

Stephen West 
Treastlrer 
Date: 25 September2019 
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DUNBARTONSHIREAND ARGYU & BUTE VALUATION JOINT BOARD 
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 20J9 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

The Annual Governance Statement is included within the Annual Accounts to assure stakeholders on how the Board 
directs and controls· its functions and· how it relates to communities which will enhance ~sparency and scrutiny of 
the Board's activities. · 

Scope of Responsibility 

Dunbartonshire and Argyll & Bute Valuation ,Tofot Board is responsible for ensuring that its business is conq.ucted in 
accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and 
used economically, efficiently and effectively: The Board also has a duty to make arrangements to secure continuous 
improvement in the way its functions are carried out. · 

In discharging this overall responsibiHty, elected members and senior officers are responsible for. implementing 
effective arrangements for governing the Board's affairs and facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, which 
includes arrangements for the management of risk. . . 

Governance Framework 

The Board bas approved and adopted a Code of Corporate Governance (the Code), and also relies on the governance 
arrangements of West Dunbartonshire Council which are consistent with the principles of the Chartered Institute of 
Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Society of Local Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE) 
Framework. 

The above code explains how Dunbartonshire and Argyll & .Bute Valuation Joint Board .aims to deliver good 
governance and reviews the effectiveness of these arrangements on an annual basis. 

Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework, published by CIPFA in association with Solace in 
2007, set the standard for local authority governance in the UK. This was reviewed and replacement framework was 
issued in 2016: Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (CIPFA/Solace, 2016) to apply to 
annual governance statements prepared for the financial year 2016/17 onwards . 

. While the Delivering Good Goveniance in Local Government Framework is written ili. a local authority context, most 
of the principles are applicable to the Joint Board and the recommendation of our external auditors was that the Joint 
Board should include this· process as part of its overall approach to governance. 

In accordance with a Code of Good Governance which was approved by the Joint Board in March 2018, a self­
assessment against the above CIPFA framework was completed and an Action Plan agreed. The Management Team 
regularly monitor progress against the actions in the Action Plan. The Local Code of Good Governance and the 
Action Plah can be found at: · 

https://www.saa.gov.uk/dab-vib/wp-oontent/uploads/sites/5/dlm uploads/2018/03/2018-03-02-Document-Pack­
VJB-as-circulated.pdf 

The Board has also put in place a system of internal financial control designed to manage risk to a reasonable level. 
Internal controls cannot eliminate risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only 
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal financial control is based on an 
ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the board's policies, aims and 
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impar.t should they be realised, and to 
manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. · 
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DUNBARTONSHIREAND ARGYLL & BUTE VALUATION JOINT BOARD 
. ANNUAL ACCOUNTSFOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (Cont'd) 

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values, by which the Board is­
directed and controlled. It also describes the way it engages with, accounts to its stakeholders. 

Within the overall i;:ontrol arrangements the system of internal control is ~tended to ensure that assets are 
safeguarded, transactions are authorised and properly recorded, and material errors or irr~gularities are either 
prevented.or would be detected within a timely period. It is based on a framework of regular management 
information, financial regulations, administrative procedures and management supervision. 

Tlie overall control arrangements include: 

• comprehensive budgeting systems; 
• · regular reviews of periodic and annual financial reports which indicate financial performance 

against the forecasts; 
• setting targets to measure financial and other performance; 
o clearly defined capital expenditure guidelines; and 
• an effective Internal Audit service ... 

Review of Effectiveness 

The Joint Board has a responsi:bility for ensuring the continuing effectiveness of its governance framework. and its system 
of internal financial control. West Dunbartonshire Council's Audit and. Ris~ Manager produces an annual audit plan based 
on a risk assessment of the Council's.and Valuation Joint Board's systems and processes. The audit plan is approved by the 
Audit Committee of the Council. This Cornmi~ee meets regularly and receives reports from the Audit Manager. The Joint 
Board's e~ternal auditors also attend. The Audit and Risk Manager produces an annual report on the work carried out by · 
Internal Audit during the year. This report contains a view on the effectiveness of the system of internal financial control. 

The Internal Audit servic~ operates in accordance with Public Sector Internal A11dit Standards (PSIAS). The Auditand 
Manager meets regularly with chief internal auditors .of other authorities and staff within the Internal Audit Service are 
appropriat~ly trained. · · 

Our review of the effectiveness of the system of internal financial control is informed by: 

• the work of managers within both the Joint Board and West Dunbartonshire Council who have responsibility for 
the development and maintenance of the financial control framework; 

• the work undertaken by West Dunbartonshire Council's Internal Auditors during the year to 31 March 2019; 
• the assessment of risk completed during reviews of the strategic audit plan; 
• reports issued by the Valuation Joint Board's External Auditors and other review bodies; and 
• knowledge of the Valuation Joint Board's governance, risk management and performance monitoring 

arrange~ents. . . . 

Through West Dunbartonshire Council, the Board's financial management arrangements conform with the governance 
requirements of the CIPFA Statement on The _Role of Chief Financial Officer in Local Government 2010. 

We are satisfied that the Valuation Joint Board has in place a sound system of internal financial control and that 
appropriate mechanisms are in place to identify any areas of weakness and to take appropriate action. This is corroborated 
by an Annual Assurance Statement prepared by the Audit Manager stating that reasonable assurance can be placed upon 
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Joint Board's internal control system in the year to 31 March 2019. · 
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DUNBAk.TONSHIREAND ARGYLL & BUTE VALUATION JOINT BOARD 
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCIJ 2019 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (Cont'd) 

Arinual Performance 

Examples of developments which have led to significant improvement in arrangements for control, governance or risk 
management within the Joint Board during 2018/19 include: 

• A revised Counter Fraud and Corruption Strategy was approved by Joint Board and implemented along with the 
. introduction of a new Business Irregularities Procedures specific to the Valuation Joint. Board. 

• A new Data Protection Policy was approved and implemented, along with associated Data Audit, Data Breach 
procedures, a Subject Access Request procedure and a Privacy Impact Assessment process. Contracts, including 
those with. data processors; have been reviewed. A Data Protection Officer was appointed and appropriately 
trainect New Privacy Notices were implemented across all areas of function including internal personnel data. 
This all resulted in a positive report being issued following an Internal Audit of Pata Protection and Freedom of 
.Information procedures. 

An annual self-assessment against the CIPF NSolace "Delivering Good Goyemance in Local Government: 
Framework" was carried out with the resultant Action Plan approved by Joint Board. 

• A Communications Strategy was developed arid approved to enhance openness and stakeholder engagement. · 

• Written definitions of the roles of Clerk. and Treasurer developed and approved by the Joint Board. 

• An assessment of the risks associatedwith the UK's wi.thdrawal from the EU was completed allowing risks or 
uncertainties arising from the pl~ned withdrawal were considered and managed/mitigated as required. 

• The Risk Management Strategy was revised and approved by Joint Board. 

"· Several Personnel/HR-related Policies, including a revised' Code of Conduct for officials; were updated and 
approved by the Board during 2018/19, ensuring alignment with current best practice and the support structures 
of West Dunbartonshire Council. 

• The Financial Strategy, which covers a 10 year period and presents a·number of scenarios, was updated and 
presented to the Board. 

The following areas were identified by the Assessor for further improvements in 2019/20: 

• A Member/Officer Short-Life Working Group has been established to consider the options available to address 
the structural funding gap. The SLWG will report to the Board in September 2019 and any conclusions agreed by 
the Board will be factored into the budget estimates and service planning processes for 2019/20 and thereafter. 

• Reviews of the Joint Board's 'Information Asset Register' and 'Business Classification & Retention of 
Documents' will be completed to ensure improved compliance with best practice in relation to Data Protection 
and Records Management. · 

• To ensure that proper budgetary itild procurement procedures are followed, induction and other training will be 
provided to the newly appointed Principal Administrative Officer. 

• A complete review of our ICT network structures and performance, including the contingency arrangements for 
the Board's electoral management system, will be completed and proposed improvements implemented to ensure 
that systems are compliant with WDC' s recommendations and appropriate levels of business continuity are 
assured. · · · 
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DUNBARTONSHIREAND ARGYLL & BUTE VALUATIONJOINT BOARD 
ANNUALACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MkflCH 2019 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (Cont'd) 

Anntial Performance (Cont'd) 

• To ensi'rre compliance with future statutory requirements, consideration will be given to the Non-Domestic Rates 
(Scotland) Bill and all related secondary legislation being considered by the Scottish Parliament. The recently 
established internal project team wiH develop and deliver the systems and process changes required to meet the 
duties and powers contained in the proposed .NDR (Reform) Act 2020. 

. . 
• ·To ensure compliance with future statutory requirements, consideration will be given to the Cabinet Office's 

Project Planning documents and emerging legislation. The VJB will take part in data matching and other test 
during 2019/20 to enable planning and budgeting for the forthcoming changes. 

Assurance 

On the basis of the assurance provided, we consider the governance and internal control environment operating during 
2018/19 to provide re.asonable and objective assurance that any significant risks· impacting on the achievement of our 
principal objectives will be identified and actions taken to avoid or mitigate their impact. Systeiµs are in place to 
continually review and improve the governance and internal control environment and action plans are in place to 
a~dress identified areas for improvement. 

Councillor Richard Trail David Thomson Stephen West 
Convenor ofthe Board Assessor and Electrical Registration Officer Treasurer 
Date: 25 September 2019 Date: 25 September 2019 Date: 25 ~eptember 2019 
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DUNBARTONSHIRE AND ARGYLL & BUTE VALUATION JOINT BOARD 
ANNUALACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

INTRODUCTION' TO ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 
.. 

The Annual Accounts comprise the following primary statements: 

• Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement; 
• Movement in Reserves Statement; 
• Balance Sheet; · · . 

· o Cashflow Statement; and . 
• Summary of significant accounting policies and other e~planatory notes. 

C-0mprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement · 

This statement shows· the accounting cost in· the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting practices, rather.than the amount to be funded from constituent authority contributions. 

Movement in Reserves Statement 

This statement shows the movement in.the year on the different reserves held by the Board, analysed into 'usable 
reserves' (i.e.. those that can be applied to fund expenditure) and other reserves. The surplus or (deficit) on the 
provision of services line shows the true economic cost of providing the Board's services, more details of which are 
showo in the comprehensive income and expenditure statement. · The net increase/decrease before transfer to 
earmarked reserves line shows _the statutory general fund balancte before any discretionary transfers to or from 
earmarked reserves undertaken by the Board. 

Balance Sheet 

The balance sheet shows ihe value as at the balance sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Board. 
The net assets of the Board (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Board.. Reserves are 
reported in two categories. The first of the category of reserves aie usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the Board 
may use to provide services, subject to any statutory limitations on tlieir use (for example the capital receipts reserve 
that may only be used to fund capital expenditure). The second category of reserves is those that the Board is not able 
to. use to provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains· and losses (for 
example the revaluation reserve), where accounts would only become available to provide services .if the assets are 
sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the movement in reserves statement line 'adjustments 
between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations'. 

Cash Flow Statement 

The cash flow statement shqws the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Board during the reporting period. 
The statement shows how the Board generates and uses cash and_ cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as 
operating, investing and financing activhies. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key 
indicator of the extent to which the operations of the authority are funded. by way of taxation and grant income or 
from the recipients of services provided by the authority. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash 
outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Board's future service delivery. Cash 
flows arising from financing activities ·are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers ofcapital (i.e .. 
borrowing) to the Board. J 
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DUNBARTONSHIRE AND ARGYLL & BUTE VALUATION JOINT BOARD 
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR.ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 

2017/18 20i8/19 
Net Net 

Expenditure · Notes Expenditure 
£000 £000 

Income 
(10) Customer Receipts (9) 

Expenditure 
2,462 Employee Costs 2 2,792 

113 . Property Costs 100 
47 · Transport Costs 41 

243 · Supplies &Services 242 
44 Payment to. Other Bodies 35 

128 Support Services 125 
22 Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairment 216n ____::.;:13_ 

3,049 · Net Cost ofService · 3,339 

(2,611) Revenue Contributions 15 (2,611) 
(70) Government Grants l6 (66) 
(13) Capital Contributions o. 

(2,694) .Other Operating Income (2,677) 

355 Net Operating Expenditure 662 

0 Interest Payable 1 
194 Net Interest on the net defined benefit liability/(assets) 4 93 

____1_9_4__ Finance and Investment Income and Expenditure 94 

549 (Surplus)/Deficit on provision ofservices . 756 

Remeasurement ofthe net defined benefit 
(4,711) liability/( assets) 4 l,33i 
(4,711) OJher Comprehensive (Income) & Expenditure 1,332· 

(4,162) Total Comprehensive (Income) & Expenditure 2,088 
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DUNBARTONSHIREAND ARGYU & BUTE VALUATiON-JOINT BOARD 
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

MOVEMENT ffl: RESERVES.STATEl'rffiNT 

2018/19 
Usable Reserves 

Capital 
Requisition 

Fuml Unapplied 
Balance. A,ccoun& 

£000. £000 
Opening Balance as at 
1 April 2018 SSl 29 

Mouments ir.l ~rves 

Surplus or (Deficit) on provision of 
Services (756) 0 

, 

Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure 0 0 

Total Comprehensive Income and 
Exoenditure (756) 0 

Adjustments between accounting 
basis & funding basis. 

Depreciation/Impairment · 13 0 

Pension Scheme Adjustmen( 745 0 

Net Transfer to ·or from earmarked 
reserves required by legislation (1) 0 

Capital requisitions unapplied 
adjustments between accounting 
basis and funding basis under 
ree:ulations 0 (4) 

Total Statutorv Adiustments 757 (4) 
.-

Increasl,!/Decrease in Year 1 (4) 

Balance at 31 March 2019 552 25 

Total Usable 577 

Unusable Reserves 

Capital Statutory 
Adjustment Revaluation Pension Mitiption 

Account Reserve Reserve Accoont 
£000 £000 £000 ·£000 

607 35 (3,140) (17) 

0 0 0 0 

0 0 (1,332) 0 

0 0 (1332) · 0 

(13) 0 0 0 

0 0 (745) 0 

0 0 0 1 

4 0 0 0 

(9) 0 (745) 1 

(9) 0 (2077) 1 

598 35 (5.217) (16) 

Total Unusable (4 600) 

.r 

Total 
Reserves 

£000 

(1,935) 

(756) 

f 
I 

(1,332) 

(2,088) 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

(2 088) 

(4 023) 
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DUNBARTONSHIREAND ARGYLL & BUTE VALUATION JOINT BOARD 
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR E_NDED 31 MARCH 2019 

MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT 

2017/18 
Usable Reserves Unusable Reserves 

Capital 

Opening Balance as at 
1April2017 

Fund 
Balance 

£000 

493 

Requisition 
Unapplied 

Account. 
£000 

16 

Capital 
Adjustment 

Account 
£000' 

629 

Revaluation 
Reserve 

£000 

35 

Pension 
Reserve 

£000 

(7,254) 

Statutory 
Mitigation 

Account 
£000 

(16) 

Total 
Reserves 

£000 

(6,097) 

Movements in Reserves 

Surplus or (Deficit) on 
provision ofServices (549) . 0 0 0 0 0 (549) 

Other Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure 0 0 0 0 4;711 0 4,711 

Total Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure {549) 0 0 0 4,711 0 4162 

Adjustments between 
accounting basis & funding 
basis 

, 

Depreciation/lmpafrment. 22 0 (22) 0 0 0 0 

Pension Scheme Adjustment 597 0 0 0 (597) 0 0 

Net Transfer to or .from 
earmarked reserves required 
by legislation I 0 0 0 0 (I) 0 

Capital requisitions applied to 
fund caoital expenditure (13) 13 0 0 0 0 0 

Total Statutorv Adiustments 607 13 (22) .o .(597) (1) 0 

Increase/Decrease in Yea.r 58 13 (22) ' 0 4.114 m 4.162 

Balance at 31 March 2018 551 29 607. 35 (3,140) (17) (1.935) 

Total Usable .580 Total Unusable ' (2,515) 
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DUNBARTONSHIRE AND ARGYLL & BUTEVALUATION JOINT BQARD 
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2019 

31 March 2018 
£000 Notes 

638 
4 

642 

6 
7 

685 
685 

.8 

(122) 
(122) 

10 

(3,140) 4 
(3,140) 

(1,935) 

580 11/12 
(2,515) 13 

(l,935l 

Property, plant and equipment 
Intangible Assets 

· Total Long Term Assets 

Short Term Debtors 
Current Assets 

Short. Term Creditors . 
Current Liabilities 

Net Pensions Liability 
Long Tenn Liabilities 

0 

·Net Assets/(Liabilities) 

Represented by: . 

Usable Reserves 
Unusable Reserves 

Total Reserves 

· 31 March 2019 
£000 

633 
0 

633 

682 
682 

(121) . 
(121) 

l' 

(5,217) 
(5,217) 

(4,023) · 

577 
(4,600) · 

(4,023) 

The unaudited Financial Statements were issued on 28 June 2019 and the audited Annual Accounts were authorised 
for issue qn 25 Septembf:I 2019. . 

~~ 
Stephen West 
Treasurer · · 
25 September 2019 
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DUNBARTONSHIRE ANDARGYLL & BUTE VALUATION JOINT BOARD 
ANNUALACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

·cASH FLOW STATEMENT 

"2017/18 
£000 

(2,682) 
(10) 

(2,692) · 

2,037 
667 

2,704 

. 12 

0 
(12) 
(12) 

0 
0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

Operating Activities 
Grants 
Sale of goods and rendering of services 
Cash Inflows from Operating Activities 

Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 
Other payments for operating activities 
Cash Outflows from Operating Activities 

Net Cash Hows from Operating Activities 

Investing Activities 
Purchase of Assets 
Other receipts from investing activities 
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities 

Financing Activities 
Interest Payable 
Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities 

Net (lncrease)/Decrease in Cash and Cash 
Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at,the beginning of the 
reporting period 
Cash .and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting 
period · 

2018/19 
£000 

(2,677) 
(9) 

(2,686) 

2,141 
540 

2,681 

(S) 

4 
0 
4 

1 
1 

0 

0 

35 

0 

0 



r 
DUNBARTONSHIRE AND ARGYLL& BUTE.VALUATIONJOINT BOARD 
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 

Note 1 - Acco~ting Policies 

L General Principles 

The Annual Accounts summarise the Board's transactions for the 2018/19 financial year and its position at the year 
end of 31 March 2019. The Board is required to prepare Annual Accounts by the Local Authority Accounts 
(Scotland) Regulations 1985. Section 12 of the Local Government in .Scotland Act 2,003 requires they be prepared in 
accordance with proper accounting practices. These. practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19 ("the Code") and the Service Reporting Code of Practice, 
supported by Intem~tional Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). · 

The accounting convention adopted in the Annual Accounts is principally historic cost, modified by thetevaluation cif 
certain categories of Property, Plant and Equipment ·and financial instruments. · 

2. Accruals of Income and Expenditure 

. Activity is accounted fox: in the year that it takes place, ncit simply when payment is made or received. In particular: 

• Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the .Board .can measure reliably the percentage of 
completion of the transaction . and when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the. 
transaction will flow to the Bciard; · 

• Expenses in relation to services rec~ived are rec~rded as expendini°re when the servtces are received, rather 
ihan when payment is made; · 

• Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed - where there is a gap between the date supplies 
are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet based upon 
materiality; . 

• Interest payable on _borrowings and receivable on investments is .accounted for on the basis of the effective 
interest rate for the relevant financial instrument, rather than on cash flovys fixed or determined by the contract; 
and · 

• Where income and expenditure have . been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a debtor or 
creditor. for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where there is evidence that debts are 
unlikely to be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and charged to revenue· for the income that might 
not be collected. . 

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty on notice of not 
more than 24 hours. 

Cash equivalents are investments that mature in three months' or less from date of acquisition and that are readily 
conv~ble to known cash amounts, with insignificant risk ofchange of value. 

Investments held by the Board comprise solely ofshort tenu surplus funds held within the bank balances. All deposits 
are held in sterling. The carrying amount is the outstanding principal receivable. . . 

Bank balances are included· in the Balance Sheet at the closing· balance in the Board's financial ledger and · include 
cheques payable not yet cashed. 

1 
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DUNBARTONSHIRE AND ARGYLL & BUTE VALUATION JOINT BOARD 
ANNUALACCOl!NTS FOR TllE YEAR ENDED.JI MARCll 2019 

Note 1 - Accounting Policies (Cont'd) 

4. Changes in Accounting policies, Estimates and Errors 

IAS. 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors requires disclosure of information on the 
expected impact of new accounting standards that have been issued but are not yet effective. These have been 
reviewed and are not deemed to be significant for the financial state~ents. 

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required l:ly proper accounting practices or the change prov,des 
more reliable or relevant infonnation about the effect oftransactions, events or conditions on the Board's financial 
position or performance. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively by adjusting opening balances and 
comparative figures, as if the new policy has always been applied. 

Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, {e. in th~ current and future years only. 

Material errors discovered in prior period· figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening balances and 
comparative figures, 

5. Charges to Revenue for non-current assets 

Services are debited with the following amounts to record the cos_t of using or holding fixed assets during the year: 

• . Depreciation, attributable to the assets used by the Board; 

• Revaluation and impairment losses, where there is no accumulated gain in the Revaluation Reserve; ·and 

• Amortisation ofintangible fixed assets. 

The Board is not required to raise funds to cover depreciation, revaluation or impairment losses. Depreciation, 
revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are replaced by the revenue provision by an adjustment within 
the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two. 

6. Intangible assets 

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do llOt have physical substance but are controlled by the Board as a result of 
past events (e.g. computer software and/or software Hcences) is capitalised when it is expected that future economic 
or.service benefits will flow froin the asset to the Board. 

Assets are measured originally at cost and only revalued where the fair value of the asset can be determined by 
reference to an active market. 

Where an intangible asset has a finite useful life, the depreciable amount of an intangible asset is depreciated over its 
useful life in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. . An asset is tested for impairment whenever 
there is an indication that the asset might be impaired - any losses recognised are posted in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or abandonment of an intangible asset is 
recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision ofServices when the asset is derecognised. · 

. . 

Where expenditure qualifies as capital for statutory purposes, amortisation, impairment losses ~d disposal gains and 
losses are not pennitted to have an impact on the Board's balance and are therefore reversed out in the Movement in 
Reserves St.atement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and the Capital Receipts Reserve. 
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DUNBARTONSHIREAND ARGYLL & BUTE VALUATION JOINT BOARD 
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED31 MARCH 2019 · . 

Note 1- Accounting Policies (Cont'd) 

7. Property, Plant and Equipment 

Assets that have physical substance and are held for the supply of goods and services, either directly or indirectly, and 
that are expected to be used during more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment. 

Recognition 

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of property, plant lµld equipment is capitalised on an 
accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic· benefits or service potential associated with the 
item will flow to the Board and the. cost ofthe asset can be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains, but does 

·not add to the asset's potential .to deliver future economic benefits or service potential, is charged as an expense when 
it is incurred. 

Measurement 

Initially measured at cost, comprising of: 

• Purchase price; 

• Any costs associated with bringing the asset to the location or condition necessary for it to. be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by management; and 

: • The initial estimate of costs for dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located 
to its original state. 

Where property, plant or equipment are acquired in exchartge for a non- monetary asset or assets, or a combination of 
monetary and non- monetary assets, the cost of the acquired item shall be measured at fair value unless there is no 
economic substance to the exchange transaction, or the fair value of neither the asset received nor the asset given up 
can be reliably measured. The acquired item is measured at fair value even if the. Board cannot immediately 
derecognise the asset given up. The acquired item is measured at the carrying amount of the asset given up if it is not 
measured at fair value. 

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases: 

• Other buildings - fair value. Where there is no market based evidence of fair value because of the specialised 
nature of the asset and the asset is rarely sold, depreciated replacement cost is used as an estimate of fair value; 
and . 

• · Plant and equipment and other non -property assets - fair value. Where assets in this class have either short 
useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated historical cost is considered to be a proxy for fair value where 
the useful life is a realistic reflection of the life of the asset and the depreciation method provides a realistic 
reflection of the consumption of the asset class_. 

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are re-valued regularly to ensure their carrying amount is not 
materially different from the fair value at the year end, as a minimum every 5 years. · 

Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. 

Where decreases in vaiue are identified, the revaluation. loss is accoUnted by: 

o Balance of revaluation gains for the asset in Revaluation Reserve - the carrying amount of the asset is Written 
down against that balance (up to the total gain); or 

•· No balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve - the carrying amount is written down 
in the Comprehensive Iricome and Expenditure Statement. 

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007, · the date of its formal 
implementation. Gains arising before_that date have,been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account. · 
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DUNBARTONSHIREAND ARGYLL & BUTE VALUATION JOINT BOARD 
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.MARCH 2019 

Note 1 - Accounting Policies (Cont'd) 

7. Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont'd) 

Impairment 

Assets are assessed at the end of each financial year for evidence in impairment or a reduction in value. Where 
indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to.be material, the recoverable amount on the asset is 
estimated and where this' is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impaihnent loss is recognised for the. 
shortfall. · · - · 

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accpunted for by: 

o Balance of revaluation gains for the asset in Revaluation Reserve :_ the carrying'amount of the asset is written 
down against that balance (up to the total fil;cumulated gains); or 

• No balance of revaluation gains for the. asset in the Revaluation Reserve - the carrying amount is written down. 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Where an impairment loss is reversed . subsequently, the reversal is credited in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statl!ment, up to ihe·amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would be charged if the 
loss had not beeri recognised. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided on all property, plant and equipment over their useful economic lives, with an exception 
made for assets without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. non depreciating land). 

. . 

The useful lives of assets, as estimated and advised by a suitably qualified officer, are as follows: 

e Other buildings* 20-60 years straight line 

• Vehicles, plant, equip 5-10 years straight line 

• Intangibles 5-lOyears straight line 

* Including components such as strucnire, mechanical and electrical, etc. 

Where an item of property, plant and equipment assets has major components whose cost in significant in relation to 
the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately. 

. ' 

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current depreciation charged 
on assets and the depreciation that would be chargeable based upon historic cost being transferred each year from the 
Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account. · 

8. Employee. Benefits 

Benefits payable during employment 

Short term employee benefits (i.e. fall due within 12 months of the year-end), such as wages and salaries, paid leave, 
paid sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits for current employees are recognised as an expense in the year in 
which the employees render service to the Board. An accrual is made against the services in the Surplus or Deficit on 
the Provision of Service for .the costs of holiday entitlement and other forms ofleave earned by the employee but not 
taken before the. year end and which employees can carry forward into the next financial year. Any accrual made. is 
required under.statute to be reversed out of the General Fund balance by a credit to the Statutory Mitigation Account 
in the Movement in Reserves Statement. · 
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DUNBARTONSHIREAND ARGYLL & BUTE VALUATION JOINT BOARD 
ANNUAL AC(;OUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

.Note 1 - Accounting Policies (Cont'd) 

8. Employee Benefits (Cont'd) 

,Teqnination Benefits 

Te~ination ben~fits a're amounts payable as a result of a decision made by the Board to terminate an office~'s 
employment before the normal retirement date or an officer's decision to accept a voluntary termination package in 
exchange for · those benefits. Tenninatiori benefits do not provide the Board with future economic benefits· and 
conseq1,1ently they are recognised on an accruals basis immediately in the •Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services line in the · Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when the authority is demonstrably 
coJil(nitted to provision of the tennination benefits. . 

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions; they are treated as pensiori costs for the purpose of 
the statutory transfer between the Pension Reserve and the General Fund of the amount by which the pension. costs 
calculated. in accordance with the Code are different from the contributions due under the pension scheme 
regulations. In the Movement in Reserves Statement apprppriations are required to and from the Pension Reserve to 
remove notional debits and credits for termination benefits related to pension's enhancements and replace them with 
the cost of the cash paid, including any amounts due and not paid at .the year end. 

Post-Employment Benefits 

Employees of the Board are members of The Local Government Pensions Scheme, administered by Glasgow City 
Council. · · 

The scheme provides defined benefits to members earned as employees of the Board. The Local Government scheme 
is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme: 

o The liabilities of the pension fund attributable to the Board are included within the Balance Sheet on an 
actuarial basis using tl:!e projected unit method (i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in 
relation to retirement benefits earned· to date by employees, based upon assumptions about mortality rates, 
employee turnover rates, projection of earnings for current employees, etc; 

• Liabilities. are discounted to their value at cUITent prices' using a discount rate of 4.3% (based upon the 
indicative return rate on long dated high quality corporate bonds); 

• All assets are at bid value and are split into Quoted Prices in Active Markets and Prices not quoted in Active 
Markets, they are now sh6wn in the notes in more detail; and 

• Split by Equity Securities, Debt Securities, Private Equity, Real Estate, Investment Funds, Derivatives, Cash. 

• The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into six components: 

• • Current · service cost ~· the increase in liabilities as result of years of service earned this year -
aJiocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services for. which the 
employee worked; 

• Past service cost ..:. the increase ·in liabilities arising froin cti~nt year decisions whose effect relates 
to years ·of service earned in. earlier years ~ debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement; 

• Net Interest expenses - the expected increase iri the present value of liabilities during the ·year as 
they move one year closer; less the fair value of plan assets debited to the Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement; 

• Gains/losses on settlements and curtailments ~ the result.of actions to relieve the Board of liabilities 
or . events that reduce the expected future service or accrual of benefits of employees -
debited/credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement; 
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DUNBARTONSHIREAND ARGYLL & BUTE VALUATION JOINT BOARD 
ANNUALACCOUNTSFORTHE YEARENDED3I MARCH2019. 
•. . 

Note 1 '- Accounting Policies (Cont'd) 

8. Employee Benefits (Cont'd) 

• Actuarial gains and losses ,-' changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have not 
coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have 
updated their assumptions - debited to the ·Pensions Reserve; and 

• Contributions paid to the local gove~ment pension funq - cash paid as employer's contributions to 
the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense. 

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the Fund to be charged with the amount payable by the 
Board to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, notthe amount calculated in accordance to the relevant 
accounting standards. · In the Movement in Reserves Statement this means that .there are appropriations to and· from 
the Pension Reserve to remove any notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with the cash 
paid or payable at the year ettd, to the pension fund and pensioners. The negative balance that arises on the P,ension 
Reserve measures the beneficial impact.on the Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the b.asis 
of cash flows rather than as benefits earned by employees. . · 

Discretionary Benefits 

The Board· also has restricted powers t.o make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of early 
retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an aw!lf(l to any member of staffare accrued in the year of 
the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the· local government 
pension scheme. · 

9; Events after the reporting_period 

Events after the reporting peripd are those events (both favourable and imfavourable) that occur between the end of 
the reportirtg period and the date when theAnnual .Accounts are authorised for issue. Two types haye been identified: 

• Those that provide evidence qf conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period ..:. .the Annual 
Accounts are adjusted to reflect this; and . . 

• Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period·- the Anriual Accounts are not 
adjusted to reflect this. However, if the·eve~t is material, a disclosure is made within the notes of the nature 
arid financial effect. 

10. Operating Leases 

Board as Lessee · 

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement .as an 
expense. Charges are made on a straight line basis over the life of the lease, even if it does not match the pattern of 
payment. · 

Board as Lessor 

Where the Board grants an operating lease over an asset, the asset is retained in the Balanc:e Sheet. Rental income is 
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement'. Credits are made on a straight line basis over the 
life of the lease, even if it doesn't match the pattern of payment. 
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DUNBARTONSHIREAND ARGYLL & BUTE VALUATIONJOINTBOARD 
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEA,R ENDED 31 MARCH io19 

Note 1 - Accounting Policies (Cont'd) 

11. Provisions, conting~nt liabilities and contingent as.sets 

Provisions 

Provisions ar,e made where an event·has taken place that gives the Board an obligation. either legal or constructive, as. 
a result of a· past event that results in a probable outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of that obligation. 

Provisions are charged as an expense to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the·yearthe Board 
becomes aware of the obligation and measured at the best estimate at. the Balance Sheet date, taking · account of 
relevant risks and uncertainties.· · 

When payII_1ents are eventually made they are charged to the ' provision carried in the Balance Sheet. Estimated 
settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial 'year. Where it becomes less than probable that a transfer -of 
economic benefits is now required; the provision is reversed and credited back.to the relevant service. 

,. . . .,, . 

Contingent Liabilities 

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Board a possible obligation whose existence 
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events,. not wholly within ,the control of the 
Bol\fd. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would ·otherwise be made but either it is · 
not probable that an ou·tflow of resources.·will be required or · the amount of the obligation cannot be measured 
reliably. 

Contingent liabilities are not· recognised in the Balance·Sheet but are disclosed as a note to the accounts, unless the 
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying ~onornic benefits or service potential is remote. 

Contingent assets 

A contingent asset arises where .an event has taken place that gives the Board a possible asset whose existence will 
only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
Board. . 

Contingent assets are not recognised-in the Balance.Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts where it is probable · 
that there will be an inflow of economic benefits. · 

12. VAT 

VAT·payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from HM Revenue and Customs. 
VAT ~ivable is excluded from income. . 

13. Reserves 

Reserves are created. by. appropriating amounts out of the General Reserve Balance in the Movement in Reserves . 
Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve _is incurred, it is charged to the Surplus/Deficit on the 
Provision ofServices in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure StatemenL The reserve is then appropriated 
back into the General Reserve Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against 
requisition income for the expenditure. •. 

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets and retirement benefits and these 
reserves do not represent usable resources forthe Board. · 
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DUNBARTONSHIREAND ARGYLL & BUTE VALUATION JOINT BOARD 
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

Note 2 - Expenditure and Funding Analysis 

Toe analysis of income and expenditure on the face of the comprehensive income and expendirure statement is that 
specified by the Service Reporting Code of Practice. However decisions about resource allocation ate taken by the 
Board on the basis of reports that are prepared on a different basis from the accounting polices used in the financial 
statements. In particular: · 

• no charges are made in relation to capital expendirure (whereas depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses 
in excess of the balance on 'the revaluation reserve and amortisations .are charged to the Board in the 
comprehensive'income and expenditure statement); and . 

• the cost of retirement benefits is.based on cash flows (payments of employer's pension'.s contributions) rather 
than current service cost of benefits ac.crued in the year. · · 

The difference between the employee .costs figure and the figure reported in the Comprehensive. Income & 
Expendirure Statement· is due to accounting adjustments for pensions and holiday pay accrual as detailed in. the table 
below. These costs are year -end adjustments that are offset by corresponding transfers to the Balance Sheet and the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. None of the ·other rows within the · Comprehensive Income & Expenditure 
Statement would be altered in the Expendirure and .Funding Analysis and therefore have not been included in. the table 
below.· · 

2018/19 
Net Expenditure in 
the Comprehensive 

Adjustments between Income and 
Net Chargeable to · Funding and Expenditure 
the General Fund Accounting Basis Statement 

£000 £000 £000 

Employee. Costs 2,141 651 2,792 

Depreciation 0 13 13 

Net Interest on the net defined 
benefit liability/(assets) 0 93 93 

Total 2141 757 2898 

Restated 2017/18 
Net Expenditure in 
the Comprehensive 

Adjustments between . Income and 
Net Chargeable to . Funding and Expenditure 
the General Fund Accounting Basis Statement 

£000 £000 £000 

Employee Costs 2,058 404 .2,462 

Depreciation 0 22 22 

Net Interest on the net defined 
benefit liabilicy/(assets) 0 194 194 

Total ·. 2,058 620 2,678 
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DUNJJARTONSHIRE AND ARGYU-& BUTE VALUATION JOINT BOARD 
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH2019 . 

·Note 3 ~ Operating Le~ 

Board-as Lessor 

The Board leases out property under operating leases to provide suitable affordable accommodation to Alpha Pets. 
Alpha Pets lease was du~ to end on the 14 April.2016; however the company and the Board have a tacit relocation 
agreement 

The minimum lease payments in future years are: 

31 March 2018 31 March 2019 
£000 £000 

2 Not later than one year . 2 
0 Later than o~e year and not later than five years 0 

______O_ Later than five years 0 
2 

Board as Lessee 

· The Board has acquired a number of photocopiers, scanner and letter openers by entering into operating leases. 

The minimum lease payments due under non~cancellable leases in future years ~: 

31 March 2018 31 March 2019 
£000 £000 

5 Not later than one year 5 
9 Later than one year andnot later than five years 4 
0 Later than five years 0--.-------

14 9 

Note 4 - Defined Benefit Pension Schemes . . . . 

As part of the ~nils·and conditions of employment of its officers, the Board makes contributions towards the cost of 
post-employment benefits. Although these benefits willnot actually be payable until employ,ees retire, the Board has 
a commitment to make the payments that needs ·to be -disclosed at 'the time. that empioyees earn their futun; 
entitlement. · · · · · ; 

The Board participates in the Strathclyde Local Government Pension Scheme, which is a defined benefit statutory 
scheme, operated as Strathclyde Pension Fund, and administered by Glasgow City Council in accordance with the 
Strathclyde Local Government Pensfon Scheme (Scotland) Regulations 1998. This is a -~ded scheme, meaning that 
the Board and employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a leveUntended to balance the pensions' · 
liabilities with investment assets. The employers' contribution rate is set by the.Fund ac~aries following valuation. 
The employer contribution rate for 2018/19 is set at 22.9% and.2017/18 was 19.3%. In 2018/19, the Board paid an 
employer's contribution of£0.316m (2017/18 £0.27lm). 

. ' 

In addition, the Board is responsible for all pension payments relating to added years'. benefits which it has awarded 
together with the related increases, Strain on the Fund costs are charged in year for any early retirals. There was no 
s~verance oi- Strain on the Fund Payments during financial year 2018/19 (2017 /18: £0). 

Tbe . Board fully complies with the international account_ing standard (IAS 19) concerning the disclosure of 
infonnation on pension: IAS I 9 states that, although the pension benefits will not be payable until the employee 
retires; the Board has a commitment· to make these payments 1U1d must disclose the cost of thjs in its accounts at the 
time employees earn their future entitlements. 

Tbe Board recognised the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are earned by 
employees, rather .than when the benefits are eventually paid .as pensions. However the charge that the Board is 
required to make against its budget is based on the cash payable' in the year, so the real cost of post- · 
employment/retirement benefits is reversed out of the general fund via the movement . in reserve statement. The 

. following transactions have been.made in .the comprehensive income and· expenditure statement and the general fund 
balance via the movement in reserves statement during the year. 
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DUNBARTONSHIREAND ARGYLL & BUTE VALUATION JOINT BOARD 
ANNUALACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

Note 4 - Defined Benefit Pension Schemes (Cont'd) 

2017/18 2018/19
£000 £000 

Net cost of services 
590 Current service cost 977· 

___9_2_ Past service cost (including curtailments) 0 
682 977 

Financing and investment Income and Expenditure 
194 Net Interest . ----- 93 
194 93 

Total post-employment benefit charged to.the Surplus or Deficit on the provision of 
876 Services 1,070 

(386) Return on plan assets (687) 
Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in financial 

(1,369) Assumptions · 2,018 
17 Changes in demographic assumptions 0 

(2,973) Actuarial gains and losses arising on experience assumptions 1 
Total post-employment benefit charged to the compreJiensive income and 

(3,835) expenditure statement 2,402 

____ Movement in Reserves Statement 
(876) Reversal of net charges made to surplus of deficit for post-employment benefits (1,070) 

____ Actual amount charged against the General Fund balance in the year 
279 Employer contributions payable to Scheme · =~~= 325 

The underlying assets and liabilities for retirement benefits_ attributable to_the Board as at 31 March 2019 are as 
follows: 

2018/19 2017/18 
; £000 . £000 

Fair value of plan assets 22,409 21,221 
Present Value of defined benefit obligations (27,382) (24,127) -
Net (liabilities)/a~ts in the Strathclyde Pension Fund· (4,973) (2,906) 

Present Value of Unfunded Liabilities (244) -· (234)
Pre Local Government Reorganisation 
Net pension asset/(liability) (5,217) (3,140) 

For the Strathclyde Local Government Pension Scheme at 31 March 2019 the Board has a net liability £4.973m and 
for the unfunded liabilities a net liability of £0.244m. The Board's net liability of £5.217m at 31 March 2019 reflects 
the future obligations to fund retirement benefits. This represents an increase in the net liability of£2.077m compared 
to the position at 31 March 2018. · · · 

The expected return· on assets is based on long term future expected investment return for each asset class as at the 
beginning of the period. The expected rate of return is 5.9% as at 31/03/19, this is a decrease from 6.0% as at 
31/03/18. - . 

Liabilities are valued on an actuarial b_asis using the projected unit method which assesses the future liabilities of the 
fund discounted to their present value. The rate used to value _liabilities is the basis of long dated high quality 
corporate bonds. 
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Note 4 - Defined Benefit Pe_.sion Schemes (Cont'd) . 

The movement during the y~ on the defined obbgaticin is noted as: 

2017/18 
£000 

27,673 Opening balance 
590 · Current service cost 

92 Past service cost (including curtailments) 
723 Interest cost 
l 00 Contributions by Members · . 

(1,369) Actuarial gains/losses in financial assumptions • 
(2,973) Other Experience · · 

(8) . Estimated unfunded benefits paid 
(484) Estimated benefits paid . 

17 Changes in .demographic assumptions -----
24,361 

· 2018/19 
£000 

24,361 
586 
391 · 
.665 

97 
2,018 

i 
(9) 

(484) 
o· 

The movement during they~ regarding the fair value of the employer's assets is noted as: 

2017/18 
£000 

20,419 Opening balance 
386 Expected return on assets 
529 Interest Income 
l00 Contributions by Members 

.271 . Contributions by employer 
8 Contributions in respect of unfunded benefits 

(8) Esthnated unfunded benefits paid 
___(_4_8~4)~ Estimated benefit paid 

21,221 

2018119 
£000 

21;221 
687 
572 

97 
316 
. 9 
(9) 

(484) 
22,409 

The Valuation Joint Board's share of the pension funds asset at 31 March 2019 comprised: 

Asset C3tegory 

31 March 2019 
Prices not 

Quoted Prices .· Quoted in 
in Active Active 
Markets · Markets 

£000 £000 
Total 
£000 

Quoted 
Prices in 

Active 
Markets 

£000 

31 March 2018 
Prices not 
Quoted in 

Active 
Markets 

£000 
Total 
£000 

Equity Securities 5,169 14 5,183 4,895 13 4,908 

Debt Securities 703 0 703 666 0 666 

Private Equity 0 2,678 2,678 0 2,536 2,536 

Real Estate 0 2,029 2,029 0 1,921 ·1,921 

Investment funds and 
unit trusts 7,356 2,194 9,550 6,966 2,078 9,044 

. Derivatives 0 0 0 1 0 1 

Cash and tash 
Equivalent 1,154 1,112 2,266 1,092 1,053 2,145 l. 
Totals 14,382 8,027 22,409 13,620 7,601 21,221 
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DUNBARTONSHIRE AND ARGYLL & BUTE VALUATION JOINT BOARD 
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

Pension Assets and Liabilities (Cont'd) . 

Asset and Liability Matching Strategy (ALM) 

The main fund.(Fund l)of Strathclyde Pension Fund does not have an asset and liability matching strategy (ALM) as 
this is used mainly by mature funds: The Fund does match, to·the extent possible, the types of assets invested to the 
liabilities in the defined benefit obligation. As is required by the pensions and investment regulations, the suitability 
of various types of investment has been considered, as has the need to diversify investments to reduce the risk of 
being invested into narrow a range. The Fund invests in equities, bonds, properties and in cash. 

The principal actuarial assumptions used at the balance sheet date are as follows: 

31/03/2018 31/03/2019 
. 6.0% · Expected rate of return . 5,9% 
2.4% · Inflation/pension increase rate 2.5% 
3.6% Salary increase rate · 3.7% 

. 2.7% Discount rate 2.4% 

Mortality 

Based on these assumptions, the average future life expectancies at the age of 65 
are: 

Males Females 
Current pensioners 21Ayellrs 23.7 years 
Future Pensioners 23.4 years 25.8 years 

S~nsitivity Analysis 

The estimation of defined benefit obligation is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions .The sensitiviiy regarding the 
principal assumptions used to measure the schemes liabilities ;rre set out below · 

Approximate % Approximate 
increase to Employer monetary Amowit 

Liability (£000) 
Rate for discounting fund liabilities (0.5% decrease ) 10% 2,780 
Rate of salary increase (0.5% increase) 2% 638 
Rate of pension increase (0.5% increase) 8% 2,070 

The total employer contributions expected to be made to the Local Government Pension Scheme for 
2018/19 .is £316,000. · 

Note 5 - External Audit Costs 
\ 

In 2018/19 the Board incurred the following fees relating to external audit in respect of external audit services 
undertaken in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice: · 

2017/18 2018/19 
£000 £000 

____. .;.7_· Fees payable for external audit services· 7 
7 7 
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Note 6- Property, Plant and Equipment 

Land& Plant & 
Buildings Equipment Total 

Movements in costs or values £000 £000 £000 

1 April 2017 · 621 142 763 
Additions 0 0 0 
31 March 2018 621 142 · 763 
Additions 0 ·4 4 
31 March 2019 621 146 767 

Movements in depreciation and impairment · 

1 Aprll2017 (3) (101) (104) 
Depreciation charge ' (5) (17) (22) 
jl Mar.eh 2018 (8) (118) (126) 
Depreciation charge · (3) (5) (8) 
31 March 2019 (11) (123) (134) 

Net Book Value 
At 31 March 2018 614 24 638 
Ar31 March 2019 610 23 633 

Revaluations 

The Board carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all property, plant and equipment required to be measured 
at fair value is re-valued at least every five years. Valuations ofland and buildings are carried out in accordance with 
the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the profes~onal standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered. 
Surveyors.· · · 

Note 7 - Intangible Assets 

The Board accounts for its software 118 intangible. assets, to the extent that the software is not an integral part of a 
particular IT system and ~collllted for as part of the hardware item of property, plant and equipment. The intangible 
assets include purchased licences. ' ' 

All so~are is given a finite u·sefuf life, based on assessments of the period that the software is ex:pected to be of use 
to the Board. The useful lives assigned to software li_cences are: 5~10 years. The carrying· amount of intangible assets 
is amortised oli a straight-line basis · · · · 

The movement on Intangible Asset balances during the year is as follows:-

2017/18 · 2018/19 
£000 Balance at start ofyear: £000 

9 Gross carrying amount · 9 
(3) Accumulated amortisation (5) 

6 Netcarrying amount at start of year 4 

0 Additions 0 
(2) Amortisation for the period (2) 

0 ·Amortisation Written Out 2 
4 Net carrying amount at end of year 0 

Comprising: 
9 Gross carrying amounts 9 

(5) Accumulated amortisation (9) 
4 0 
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DUNBARTONSHIRE ANDARGYLL & BUTE VALUATION JOINT BOARD 
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

Note 8 -.Debtors 

2017/18 
£000 

5 
680 
685 .· 

Other Entities and Individuals 
Other Local Authorities 

Note 9 - Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The balance of cash and cash equivalents iS' made up of the following elements: 

2017/18 
£000 

____O_ Imprest 
0 

Note 10 - C~clitors 

2017/18 
£000 

4 Central Government Bodies 
101 Other Entities and Individuals 

17 Other Local Authorities 
122 

Note 11 - Balances & Reserves 

2018/19 
£000 

673 
682 

2018/19 
£000 

0 
0 

2018/19 
£000 

6 
100 

15 
121 

I 

\ 
I 

At their Board meeting on the 16 November 2012, the Board approved a Balance and Reserves Policy. The table 
below details the movement on revenue reserves this year. · 

Opening Balance at 1 April 2018 
Gains/(Losses) on thefund 
Closing Balance at 31 March 2019 

£000 
551 

1 
552 

The revenue reserves balance stands at £0.552m on 31 March 2019, of which £0.162m has been applied to balance 
the 2019/20 budget, leaving an uneannarked balance of £0.390m. 

Note 12 - Capital Expenditure and Capital Financi1.1g 

· The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below, together with the resources 
that have been used to finance it. 

2017/18 2018/19 
£000 £000 

12 Contributions from Authorities 0 
17 Unapplied Capital contributions b/forward 29 

Capital expenditure incurred during the year: 
0 Upgrade PC's (4) 
0 Servers 0 

____o_ Purchase. ofBuilding 0 
29 lJnapplied Capital contributions c/forward 25----~ 
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DUNBARTONSHIRE AND ARGYLL & BUTE VALUATION JOINT BOARD 
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

Note 13 - Unusable Reserves 

31March 2018 31 March 2019 
£000 £000· 

607 Capital Adjustment Account 598 
35 Revaluation Reserve 35 

(3,140) Pension Reserve (5,217) 
(17) Statutory Mitigation Account -(16) 

(2,515) Total Unusable Rese"es (4,600) 

Capital Adjustment Account 

The capital adjustment account absorbs the timing difference arising from the different arrangements for accounting 
for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those 
assets under statutory provisions. The account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhanceme~t as 
depreciation/impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the comprehensive income and expenditure 

· statement (with reconciling postings to the revaluation reserv1e to convert fair value figures to a historical cost basis). 
The account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Board as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction 
and enhancement. · · 

The account contains. revaluation gains accumulated on property. plant and equipment before 1 April 2007, the date 
that the revaluation reserve was created to hold such gains. The movement in reserve st~tement provides detail of the 
source of all the transactions posted to the account. 

Revaluation Reserve 

The revaluation reserve contains the gains made by the Board arising from increases in the value of its property, plant 
and equipment (and intangible assets). The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are: 

• re-valued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost; 
• used in the provision of, service's and the gains are consumed through depreciation; or 
• disposed of and the gains are realised. 

The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that the reserv_e was created, 
Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the balance on th~ capital adjustment account. · 

Pension Reserve 

The pension reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for post­
employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. The Board accounts for post­
employment benefits in the comprehensive income and expenditure-as the benefits are earned by employees accruing 
years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns 
on any resources set aside to meet the, costs. However statutory arrangements requires benefits earned to be financed 
as the Board makes employer's contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pension for which it is directly 
responsibk The debit balance on the pensions reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits earned 
by past and current·employees and the resources the Board has set aside to meet.them.· The statutory a.i.-rangements 
will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time th~ benefits come to be paid. · · 

Statutory Mitigation Account 

The statutory mitigation account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the general fund balance from 
accrwng for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year, e.g. annual leave entitlement carried forward at 
31 March. Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the general fund balance is neutralised by transfers to or 
from this account. · · 

Capital Requisition Unapplied Account 

The capital r~quisition unapplied account represents capital contributions from the constituent authorities which have 
not yet been spent. · · 
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DUNBARTONSHIREANDARGYLL & BUTE VALUATION JOINT BOARD 
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019. 

Note 14 - Contingent Assets & Liabilities 

The Board has not identified any Contingent Assets and Liabilities. 

Note 15 - Contributio~ from Authorities 

Revenue Revenue 
2017/18 

£000 
2018/19 

£000 
1,275 Argyll & Bute Council 1,281 

642 East Dunbartonshire Council 642 
694 West Dunbartonshire Council 688 

2,611 2,611 

Note 16 - Government Grants 

The Board received a total of £66,022 of government grants.in 18/19 to continue with the delivery of Individual 
Electoral Registration. · 

.2017/18 2018/19
£000 £000 

70 CabinetOffice 66--:------:7=-::0::--. 
, 66 

Note 17 .:. Related Parties 

It is a requirement of the Code that material transactions with related parties (i.e organisations which the Board can 
influence or be influenced by) should be disclosed. The Board forms Group Accounts with three local authorities, 
namely West Dunbartonshire Council, East Dunbartonshire Council and Argyll & Bute Council.· Sums paid by the 
local authorities to the Board are detailed in Note 15. · 
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Independent auditor's report to the members ofDunbartonshire and Argyll & Bute Valuation Joint Board and 

the Accounts Commission 

Report on the audit ofthe financial statements 

Opinion on financial statements 

I certify that I have audited the financial statements in the annual accounts· ofDunbartonshire and Argyll & Bute 
Valuation Joint Board for the year ended 31 March 2019 under Part VII ofthe Local Government (Scotland) Act 
1973. The financial statements comprise the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, Movement in 
Reserves Statement,_Balance Sheet, Cash Flow Statement and notes to the financ~ statements, iiu;luding a summary 
ofsignificant acco~ting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is 
applicable law andiil~onal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, and as 
interpreted and adapted by the Code ofPractice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19 (the 
2018/19 Code). . . . . 

In my opinion the accompanying financial statements: 

• give ·a true and fair view in accordance. with applicable law and the 2018/19 Code ofthe state ofaffairs ofthe 
Dunbartonshire and Argyll & Bute Valuation Joint Board as at 31 March 2019 and ofits income and 
expenditure for the year then ended; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, as interpreted and 
adapted by the 2018/19 Code; and · · · · 

• . have been prepared in accordance. with the requirements ofthe Local Govemmen, (Scotland) Act 1973, The 
Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014, and the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003. 

Basisfor opinion . 

I coil.ductedmy audit in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)), 
as required by the the Code ofAudit Practice approved by the-Accounts Commission for Scotland My 
responsibilities under those. standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the· audit ofthe 
financial statements section ofmy report. I was appointed under arrangements approved by the Accounts Commission 
on 10 May 2019. This is the first year ofmy appointment. I am independentofthe Joint Board in accordance with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit o~the. financi!ll stateme~ts in the UK including the Financial 
Reporting Councirs Ethical Standard, and lhave fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements; Non~ahdit ~ices prohibited by the Ethical Standard were not provided to the Joint Board. I ~lieve 
· that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. · 

Conclusions. relating to going concern basis ofaccounting 

I have nothing to report in respect ofthe following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) req~meto report to 
you where: · · 

• the use cifthe going concern basis ofaccounting in the prep~tion o(the financial statements is not • 
appropriate; or 

• the Treasurer has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast 

significant doubt about the Dunbartonshire and Argyll ~ Bute Valuation Joint Board's ability to continue to 
adopt the going concern basis ofaccounting for a period ofat least twelve months from the date when the 
financ;:ial_statements are authorised for issue. . · · 

Risks of material misstatement 

I have reported in a separate Annual Audit Report, whichis available from 
. 
the Audit Scotland website, the most 

\ 

significant. assessed risks ofmaterial misstatement that lidentifi~d and my conclusions .thereon. 
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Responsibilities oftlie Treasurer and Joint Board f~r the financial statement, 

AB explain:ed more fully in the Statement ofResponsibilities, the Treasurer is responsible for the preparation of 
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the :financial reporting framework, and for such 
internal control as the Treasurer determines is necessary to enable the preparation offinancial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due.to fraud orerror. · 

In preparing the financial statements, the Treasun:r is responsible for as~essing the Dunbiµtonshire and Argyll.& Bute 
Valuation Joint Board's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis ofaccounting unless deemed inappropriate. · 

The Joint Board is responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process. 

Andltor9sresponsibilities for the audit ofthe financial statements 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable ~urance about whether the fmancial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level ofassurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
ISAs (UK) will always-detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions ofusers taken on the basis ofthese financial statements. 

The risk ofnot detecting' a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from.error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, intentiomil omissions, misrepresentations, or the override ofinternal control. The 
capability ofthe audit to detect :fraud and other irregularities depends on factors such as the skilfulness ofthe . 
perpetrator, the frequency and extent ofmanipulation, the degree ofcollusion involved, the relative size ofindiyidual 
amounts nianipulated, and the ·seniority ofthose individuals involved. I therefore design and perform audit procedures 
which respond to the assessed risks ofmaterial misstate111ent due to fraud. · 

A further description ofthe auditor's responsibilities for the audit ofthe financial statements is located on the · · 
Financial RepOJ;ting Council's website www.frc.org.uk/audttorstefil)Qnsibilities. This description forms part ofmy 
auditor's report. · · · 

Other Information in the annual accounu 

The Treasurer is responsible for the other information in the annual accounts. The other information com_prises the 
infonnation other than the financial statements, the audited part ofthe Remuneration Report, and my auditor's report 
thereon. My ppinion on the financial statements does.not cover the other information and! do not express anyform of 
assurance conclusion: thereon except on matters prescribed by the Accounts Commission to the extent explicitly ~tated 
later in thi~ tep9l1. . . . . 

In connection with my audit ofthe financial statements, my.responsibility is to read all the other information in the 
annual accounts and, in doing so, consider whether the otht?I' information is materially inconsistent with the finan~ial 
statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstate.d. Ifl identify such 
material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, I am required to determine whether there is a material . 
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement ofthe other inf9rmation. If, based on the work I 
· have performed, I conclude that there is a material misstatement ofthis other in(onnation, I am required to report that 
fact. I have nothing to report in this regard. · 
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Report on other requirements 

Opinions on matters prescribed by the Accounts Commission . 

In my opinion, the audited part ofthe Remuneration Report has been properly prepared in accordance with The Local 
AuthorityAccowtts (Scotland) Regulations 2014. 

In my opinion, based on the vvork undertaken in the colll"Se ofthe audit: 

• the infonnation given in the Management Commentacy for the financial year for which the financial 
statements are prepared is consistent with theJinancial statements and that report has been prepared in 
accordance with statutruy guidance issued Iln:der the Local Government in Scotland Act 200~; and 

· • the information given in the AnnualGov~rnance Statement for the financial year for which the finan~ial 
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and that rwort has been prepared iii 
acco~ce ~th the Delivering Good Governance in Locru, Government: Framework (2016). 

Matters on which I am required to report by exception 

I am required by the Accounts Commission to report to you if, in my opinion: 

• adequate accounting.records have not been kept; or 

• the financial statements and the audtted part ofthe Remuneration Report are not in agreement with the 
accounting records; or · 

' 
• I have not received all the infonnation and explanations I require for my audit. 

• · I have nothing to report in respect oftliese matters. 

Conclusions on wider scope responsibilities 

In addition to my responsibilities. for the annual accounts, my conclusions on tl)e wider scope responsibilities 
specified in the Code ofAudit Practice are set out in my Annual Audit Report. 

·Use ofmy report 

This report is made solely to the parties -to whom it is addressed in accordance with Part VII ofthe Local Government 
(Scotland) Act 1973 and for no other purpose. In accordance with paragraph 120 ofthe Code ofAudit Practice, I do 
not undertake to have responsibilities tomC?ffibers or officers, in their individual capacities, or to third parties. 

Richard Smith 
Audit Scotland 
4thFloor 
8 N~lson Mandela Place 
Glasgow 
G21BT 

25 September 2019 
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